Pecyn Dogfennau

Wendy Walters

Prif Weithredwr,

Chief Executive,

Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP

D X
oner Sir Gar B
Carmarthenshire

Ofp. o
“nty cow©

DYDD MAWRTH, 14 IONAWR 2020

AT: HOLL AELODAU’R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW | FYNYCHU CYFARFOD O’'R BWRDD
GWEITHREDOL A GYNHELIR YN SIAMBR, NEUADD Y SIR AM 10.00 YB,
DYDD LLUN, 20FED IONAWR, 2020 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A
AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA SYDD YNGHLWM

Wendy Walters

PRIF WEITHREDWR

¥ AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA

Swyddog Democrataidd: Kevin Thomas

Ffon (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224027

E-bost: kjthomas@sirgar.gov.uk
Cyf: ADO016-001

w S cachf ECHCWGoRarleinamdani
orer Sir Gar wwwisirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire e
¢ -  YOURCOUNciLdoitonline
ity cou® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 1



Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL
AELODAETH - 10 AELOD

Cynghorydd

Portffolio

Cynghorydd Emlyn
Dole

Arweinydd

Arweinyddiaeth a Strategaeth Gorfforaethol; Cadeirydd y Bwrdd Gweithredol;
Cynrychioli’r Cyngor ar CLILC; Datblygu Economaidd; Yn cynrychioli’r Cyngor
ar Ranbarth Dinas Bae Abertawe; Cydweithio; Marchnata a'r Cyfryngau;
Penodi Aelodau o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol; Penderfynu ar bortffolios ABG;
Cyswillt &'r Prif Weithredwr; Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus

Cynghorydd Mair
Stephens

Dirprwy Arweinydd
Rheolwr Busnes y Cyngor; Adnoddau Dynol; Rheoli Perfformiad; Archwilio
Cymru; Hyfforddiant; T.G.Ch; T.I.C. Cynllunio strategol

Cynghorydd Glynog
Davies

Addysg a Phlant

Ysgolion; Gwasanaethau Plant; Anghenion Addysgol Arbennig; Diogelu;
Cartrefi Seibiant; Gwasanaeth Gwella Ysgolion Integredig Rhanbarthol;
Dysgu Oedolion yn y Gymuned; Gwasanaethau leuenctid; Gwasanaethau
Arlwyo Ysgolion, Aelod Arweiniol dros Blant a Phobl Ifanc; Llysgennad
leuenctid

Cynghorydd Cefin
Campbell

Cymunedau a Materion Gwledig

Materion Gwledig ac Ymgysylltu a&'r Gymuned; Diogelwch Cymunedol; Yr
Heddlu; Deddf Gwrthderfysgaeth a Diogelwch 2015; Trechu Tlodi; Llesiant
Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol; Cyswllt y Trydydd Sector; Cydraddoldeb,
Strategaeth Newid yn yr Hinsawdd.

Cynghorydd Hazel
Evans

Amgylchedd

Shwriel; Clanhau Strydoedd; Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd aThrafnidiaeth; Cynnal
a Chadw Tiroedd; Gwasanaethau Adeiladu; Gofalu; Clanhau Adeiladau;
Cynlluniau Argyfwng; Llifogydd

Cynghorydd Linda
Evans

Tai
Tai - Cyhoeddus; Tai - Preifat; Heneiddio'n dda

Cynghorydd Peter
Hughes Griffiths

Diwylliant, Chwaraeon a Thwristiaeth

Llysgennad Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned; Datblygu'r laith Gymraeg;
Theatrau; Chwaraeon; Canolfannau Hamdden; Amgueddfeydd; Llyfrgelloedd;
Parciau Gwledig; Twristiaeth, Hawliau Tramwy Cyhoeddus.

Cynghorydd Philip
Hughes

Diogelu'r Cyhoedd

Safonau Masnach; lechyd yr Amgylchedd. Gorfodaeth Amgylcheddol;
Gorfodaeth Cynllunio; Gwastraff Didrwydded; Gwasanaethau Parcio; Bio
amrywiaeth

Cynghorydd David
Jenkins

Adnoddau

Cyllid a’r Gyllideb; Effeithlonrwydd Corfforaethol; Rheoli Eiddo / Asedau;
Caffael; Budd-daliadau Tai; Refeniw; Gwasanaethau Statudol (Crwneriaid,
Cofrestryddion, Etholiadol, Arglwydd Rhaglaw); Hyrwyddwr y Lluoedd Arfog;
Canolfannau Cyswilit a Chanolfannau Gwasanaethau Cwsmeriaid

Cynghorydd Jane
Tremlett

Gofal Cymdeithasol ac lechyd

Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol i Oedolion; Gofal Preswyl; Gofal Cartref;
Anableddau Dysgu; lechyd Meddwl; Cyswllt / Cydweithio / Integreiddio &’r
GIG; Gwasanaethau Arlwyo Cartefi Gofal, Pencampwr Gofalwyr; Llysgennad
Anabledd; Pencampwr Gofal Dementia

EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
www.sirgarllyw.cymru

PN
omor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire ) .
2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

I 4
O["”)'Co\!“o

Tudalen 2



B

© © N o o

11.
12.

13.

AGENDA

YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB.
DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL.

LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y 5-6
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL A GYNHALWYD AR Y 6ED IONAWR
2020

CWESTIYNAU A RHYBUDD GAN YR AELODAU
CWESTIYNAU A RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD

CANOLFAN IECHYD A LLESIANT GYMUNEDOL CROSS HANDS 7-16

PROTOCOL AR GYFER Y WASG A'R CYFRYNGAU 17 -48
ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW Y CYNGOR 49 - 74
DIWEDDARU RHAGLEN GYFALAF 2019-20 75 -82
YSTYRIED GWRTHWYNEBIADAU | ORCHYMYN 83 - 130

CYDGYFNERTHU SIR GAERFYRDDIN (MANNAU PARCIO ODDI
AR Y STRYD) (AMRYWIOL FEYSYDD PARCIO, SIR
GAERFYRDDIN) (AMRYWIAD RHIF 4)

GWASANAETH TALU A THEITHIO AR FWS YSGOL 131 -142
PENODI LLYWODRAETHWR ALL 143 - 148

UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD
AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG BENDERFYNU EI YSTYRIED YN
FATER BRYS YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF
LLYWODRAETH LEOL, 1972.

EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
www.sirgarllyw.cymru

PN
omor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire e 1
G  YOURCOUNcILdoitonline
iy cou® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 3



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 3
BWRDD GWEITHREDOL

DYDD LLUN, 6ED IONAWR, 2020

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd E. Dole [Cadeirydd]

Y Cynghorwyr:
C.A. Campbell, G. Davies, H.A.L. Evans, L.D. Evans, P.M. Hughes, P. Hughes-Giriffiths,
D.M. Jenkins and J. Tremlett

Hefyd yn bresennol:
Y Cynghorwyr: D.M. Cundy, R. James, K. Lloyd and J.G. Prosser

Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod:

W. Walters - Prif Weithredwr

C. Moore - Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol
J. Morgan - Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cymunedol
G. Morgans - Cyfarwyddwr Addysg & Phlant

L. Rees Jones - Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith

D. Hockenhull - Rheolwr y Cyfryngau a Marchnata

M. Evans Thomas

Prif Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Siambr, Neuadd Y Sir, Caerfyrddin : 10.00 yb - 10.25 yb

1.

YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB

Cafwyd ymddiheuriad am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd L.M. Stephens.
DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL

Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw fuddiannau personol.

LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y BWRDD
GWEITHREDOL A GYNHALWYD AR 16 RHAGFYR 2019

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod y Bwrdd
Gweithredol a gynhaliwyd ar 16 Rhagfyr 2019, gan eu bod yn gywir.

CWESTIYNAU A RHYBUDD GAN YR AELODAU

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau & rhybudd wedi cael eu cyflwyno
gan yr Aelodau.

CWESTIYNAU A RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y cyhoedd.
STRATEGAETH CYLLIDEB REFENIW 2020/21 1 2022/23

Rhoddodd y Bwrdd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn rhoi golwg gyffredinol ar y
Strategaeth Cyllideb Refeniw ar gyfer 2020/21 a'r ddwy flynedd ariannol ganlynol.
Roedd yr adroddiad yn darparu manylion y broses gyllidebu, setliad amodol
cyfredol Llywodraeth Cymru ac amserlen y setliad terfynol. Roedd yr adroddiad

u ynol. Roedd
e sie Gt BOHCMeoRarleinamdani  Tydalen 5

Carmarthenshire . .
o, =22 YOUR couNnciLdoitonline
ity Cout® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



hefyd yn nodi'r pwysau o ran dilysu a'r gyllideb y mae angen i'r Aelodau eu
hystyried wrth bennu cyllideb refeniw y flwyddyn nesaf. Byddai'r adroddiad yn salil
i'r broses ymgynghori ar y gyllideb a fyddai'n cael ei chynnal yn ystod lonawr a
Chwefror 2020.

Nododd yr adroddiad fod Sir Gaerfyrddin wedi cael cynnydd o 4.4% yng ngrant
Llywodraeth Cymru (£11.5m) gan fynd a'n Cyllid Allanol Cyfun i £274.159m ar
gyfer 2020/21. Roedd y cynnydd hwn yn dilyn rhai trosglwyddiadau i'r cyllid ar
gyfer Pensiynau a Chyflogau Athrawon, a oedd yn cael eu hariannu'n rhannol yn
unig o fewn y setliad ac yn cyfrif am tua £5.7m o'r cynnydd cyffredinol mewn cyllid.

Er bod llawer o waith eisoes wedi'i wneud wrth baratoi'r gyllideb, nodwyd mai dim
ond datganiad sefyllfa cychwynnol oedd yr adroddiad hwn a fyddai'n cael ei
ddiweddaru dros y misoedd i ddod wrth i'r gyllideb gael ei datblygu ymhellach,
ymgysylltu ag aelodau'r cyngor, cynnal ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus a derbyn y
setliad terfynol gan Lywodraeth Cymru.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL fod cynnwys yr adroddiad yn cael ei nodi
a bod strategaeth y gyllideb 2020/21 hyd 2022/23 yn cael ei chymeradwyo fel
sylfaen i ymgynghori, a bod ymgais benodol yn cael ei gwneud i gael
sylwadau gan ymgyngoreion ynghylch y cynigion effeithlonrwydd vy
manylwyd arnynt yn Atodiad A i'r adroddiad.

7. UNRHYW FATER ARALL

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw eitemau brys i'w hystyried.

CADEIRYDD DYDDIAD

. . .
Tudalen 6 oo sircar ks ECHCMeorarleinamdani

Carmarthenshire . .
o, =22 YOUR couNnciLdoitonline
ity Cout® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Eitem Rhif 6

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL
20/01/2020

Canolfan lechyd a Llesiant Gymunedol Cross Hands

Y Pwrpas:

Ystyried prynu buddiant partner cyd-fenter y Cyngor mewn tir yng ngorllewin Cross Hands i
hwyluso datblygiad Canolfan lechyd a Llesiant Gymunedol Cross Hands.

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:
Cymeradwyo prynu buddiant partner y Cyd-fenter yn y tir am £315,000.

Y rhesymau:

Cefnogi cynnig Bwrdd lechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda i ddatblygu Canolfan lechyd a Llesiant yn
Cross Hands, gyda'r nod o ddarparu ateb cynaliadwy i barhau i ddarparu iechyd a gofal
cymdeithasol cymunedol yn yr ardal.

Angen ymgynghori &'r Pwyllgor Craffu perthnasol - Amherthnasol
Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad - OES
Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad - NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-Y
Cynghorydd David Jenkins

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth

Enw Pennaeth y Swyddi: Rhifau ffén a Chyfeiriadau e-bost:

Gwasanaeth: _
Pennaeth Adfywio | (01267) 225936

Jason Jones _ )
Jajones@sirgar.gov.uk

Uwch-brisiwr (01267) 246256

Awdur yr Adroddiad: _
JHHumphreys@sirgar.gov.uk

Hywel Humphreys

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 7


mailto:Jajones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:jhhumphreys@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD 20/01/2020

Cross Hands Community Health and Wellbeing Centre

Background Information

Carmarthenshire County Council has led on the mixed-use redevelopment of the 56-acre
former West Tip site at Cross Hands on a joint venture (JV) basis, in a 50/50 partnership with
a private developer, George LB. The JV has put in place the infrastructure at a cost of £6m to
facilitate the redevelopment of the site. Persimmon are currently on site and are now nearing
the completion of some 120 houses. Plot 2B (approx. 4.3 acres) was sold earlier this year to
Pobl who will shortly deliver 60 affordable houses of mixed tenure. The remaining residential
plot 2A (4.8 acres) is currently being marketed by Property and Regeneration. The
development of the 10-acre retail site is now nearing completion, attracting national retailers.
The remaining parcel of land (3 acres) is identified within the Council’s Local Development
Plan (LDP) for mixed use, including health care. The revise deposit LDP allocation for the
subject site is more specific, allowing for wellbeing / medical centre and community use. The
plan attached at appendix 1 shows the various elements of the JV development site (Cross
Hands West).

The Plot reserved for the Health Facility is shown hatched on the attached plan at Appendix 2.

Current Position

An outline planning application (with all matters revered) for the proposed development was
submitted by Hywel Dda University Health Board (HDUHB) in August 2019, with
determination likely in the early quarter of 2020. HDUHB have also submitted an Outline
Business Case (OBC) to Welsh Government (WG) seeking funding support. The business
case needs to demonstrate that the land is deliverable. A decision on the business case, and
funding required, is expected from WG in early February 2020. If the OBC is approved by
WG, HDUHB will be required to submit a Full Business Case to WG. This would likely be
determined towards the end of 2020. It is only on approval of the FBC that funding will be
made available to allow a purchase of the land, subject to planning permission, to proceed.

HDUHB cannot commit to purchase the land until planning permission is granted and funding
is confirmed.

HDUHB jointly with the JV partners have commissioned an independent valuation of the site
by the District Valuer (10" October 2019). The independent advice confirms a site value of
£630,000, after allowing for abnormal costs.

wor Sir GAr A EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 8



Purchase Proposal

The Council’s JV partner is reluctant to commit to a sale of the land now to HDUHB as a
funding decision is unlikely before the end of 2020 at the earliest and there is no guarantee
that the purchase will eventually complete.

On this basis, HDUHB were unable to evidence to WG that the land required for the
development is deliverable. To overcome this Officers have agreed, subject to Executive
Board approval, terms for the Council to purchase the private sector JV partner’s interest in
the subject land.

The proposal is for the Council to acquire the JV partner’s 50% interest in the land. This
purchase would be subject to WG approving the OBC. At this point the Council would
purchase the JV partner’s interest for the sum of £315,000, and simultaneously exchange
contracts with HDUB for a sale of the land for £630,000. This sale to HDUHB would be
subject to full planning permission being granted for the proposed scheme and approval of
the FBC by WG.

There will be some risk to the Council in proceeding on this basis. This risk is mitigated in
terms of the planning condition as the land is allocated for the proposed use. Regarding WG
funding approval, conditional contracts will only be exchanged once WG have approved the
OBC, which should give comfort that there are realistic prospects of the FBC being approved.
In the unlikely event that the proposed development doesn’t proceed then the Council would
be able to dispose of the land for alternative use, subject to planning.

If the Council does not agree to buy out the private sector JV interest, then the scheme is
unlikely to proceed as it cannot be demonstrated that the land is deliverable.

Recommendation

To facilitate the strategic development proposals, it is recommended that the Council agrees
to purchase the Joint Venture partner’s 50% interest in the land for the sum of £315,000 and
authorises officers to simultaneously progress the sale of land to HDUHB.

Detailed Report attached Appendices 1 & 2

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 9



| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Jason Jones Head of Regeneration

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

YES YES YES NONE YES NONE YES

Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

The proposed sale accords with the principles of the Well-being and Future Generations (Wales)
Act 2015. The development aims to provide a sustainable solution for the continued provision of
primary and community health and social care in the area. Further, in line with Hywel Dda
University Health Board’s aspiration to adopt a social model of health as outlined in its long-term
strategy ‘A Healthier Mid and West Wales: Our Future Generations Living Well’, the development
also embraces a community development approach to health promotion.

Recognising the specific needs of the area, the development will provide a ‘hub’ for the
provision of bespoke information, advice and assistance to support and empower the local
population to manage their own wellbeing needs. Adopting this approach and targeting wider
determinants of health will provide a valuable contribution to improving the health and well-
being of the present and future generations living in the Amman Gwendraeth locality.

Legal

The acquisition of the land and subsequent sale will require legal advice and preparation of
appropriate legal documentation.

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
e Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 10



Finance

The payment to the JV partner (George LB) will be £315,000 (three hundred and fifty thousand
pounds).

This sum of money, and the remaining 50% of the land value, will be recouped on completion of
the sale of the land to HDUHB, subject to planning Permission and WG funding support. In the
unlikely event that the sale does not proceed the land will be sold for alternative use to recover
costs.

The funding for the payment can be provided from Departmental Reserves. As recognised in the
report funding is required for a short-defined period, as the land will be sold on to the Health
Authority. Therefore, the requirement is more of cashflow funding issue. With the funding being
provided from Departmental Reserves upon the sale of the Land to the Health Authority the
reserves can be repaid to the said reserve.

Risk Management Issues

There is a risk that the proposed sale to HDUHB will not complete. There are only two matters
that can adversely affect the sale. This risk is mitigated in terms of the planning condition as
the land is allocated for the proposed use. Regarding WG funding approval, conditional
contracts will only be exchanged once WG have approved the OBC, which should give comfort
that there are realistic prospects of the FBC being approved.

Physical Assets

Disposal of the land will generate a capital receipt for the Council, whilst also ensuring that
future maintenance of the asset would be undertaken by a third party.

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 11



CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Jason Jones Head of Regeneration

1. Scrutiny Committee
n/a

2.Local Member(s)
Clirs Emlyn Dole and Dot Jones have been consulted and are supportive of the proposal.

3.Community / Town Council
n/a

4.Relevant Partners
Hywel Dda and JV partner have been consulted and are in support

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
n/a

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW OR THERE ARE NONE (Delete as applicable)

Title of Document File Ref No. [ Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
To be completed To be To be completed (Delete as applicable)
completed

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 12



P _
omor Sir Gar X2 Appendix 1
Carmarthenshire
CN “"'é\\ Dyddiad/Date: 19/11/2019 N
Eidd Adfy 1P d Rnty CO““ ‘
Cyf./Ref. HHHL ~(-?‘
SR Graddfa/Scale - 1: 5000 S

W\ ) d
. AR E -
o vy -

NRARAY R 2 ‘

ARATAY

VW = ‘

VA
=
‘AT o
|

.
RARY : “‘
A
==y
i
L

\\ \\\\ \
AR :.:E-
|
L]
et
0
|

IPERSIMMON

Ysgol Maes Y Gwendraeth
Cefneithin Campus

CTTTT1 II
MEDICAL

Persimmon Development

U]

Plot 2a For Sale

Medical Centre Site

EREEE!

Plot 2b Pobol Development

—

Retail Park

=

A
v A\
AN
\! '
/ A\
A\ \‘ \ s A
W\ mss iands \\ \\
N W/ AN &
A
) oo AN N \

¥ © Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2019 Ara I\H; .c 4 g@l 023377
7 4 © Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 100023377
&N ANBY/N 7. A VI ~ N A%

SCTANNS 2 SO\
SA/A‘}\.‘A 7 RIRN

7
N,




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Gwenq

N SASN NI

© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2019 ArIMgmglglt;LQ%W

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 100023377

3
Q ]
N T}
2 — N x
X |5 S g g
o — md_ — 1 H m ¥
S |8 T S 3
[ 8 3 7
o 3 w 3 3
> 5| & 2 - g
[a)] (@) G [ m
AN
//// \\\\\\\\
Z
Q.
[
‘ \\ 5
) | oru Qs
<«Q = Mw.y
= s
/ & o
Ow '§i
QO =z
S m & S
omm 83228
dd g2
5 = i
2| & i
> g
5\ &
~

Recreation

Ca




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 7

Y Bwrdd Gweithredol
20FED lonawr 2020

Protocol ar gyfer y Wasg a'r Cyfryngau

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:
e Ystyried Protocol wedi'i ddiweddaru ar gyfer y Wasg a'r Cyfryngau

Y Rhesymau:

e Mae strwythur is-adrannol newydd wedi'i weithredu ers cytuno ar y protocol presennol,
sydd wedi cyfuno nifer o wasanaethau i greu tim Marchnata a'r Cyfryngau newydd.
Mae strwythurau staffio ac arferion gwaith newydd ar waith o ganlyniad i hyn, sydd
hefyd yn adlewyrchu'r gofynion newidiol gan y wasg a'r cyfryngau

e Mae'r wasg a'r cyfryngau yn sianeli cyfathrebu hanfodol i'r Cyngor. Mae'r protocol hwn

yn ceisio egluro'r prosesau ar gyfer cyfathrebu rhagweithiol ac adweithiol drwy'r wasg
a'r cyfryngau, ac yn rhoi arweiniad i'r holl staff ac aelodau

e Cytunwyd ar Brotocol ar gyfer y Cyfryngau a'r Wasg gan y Cyngor Llawn ym mis
Mehefin 2018, fodd bynnag ers hynny bu newidiadau sylweddol o ran y ffordd y mae'r
cyfryngau'n gweithio, ac mae llawer mwy o bwyslais ar ddarlledu newyddion ar-lein ac
ar y cyfryngau cymdeithasol

e Mae'r Protocol newydd hwn yn cynnwys canllawiau ynghylch Safonau'r Gymraeg a
Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol.

Angen ymgynghori &'r Pwyllgor Craffu perthnasol NacOes
Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES
Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Y
Cynghorydd Emlyn Dole

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Y Prif

Weithredwr _
Rhifau ffon: 01267 224654

Awdur yr Adroddiad: Deina

Hockenhull Rheolwr Marchnata a'r Cyfeiriadau E-bost:
Cyfryngau DMHockenhull@sirgar.gov
-uk

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 17


mailto:DMHockenhull@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:DMHockenhull@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD
20™ JANUARY 2020

Press and Media Protocol

BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

To consider an updated Press and Media Protocol which updates and strengthens existing
protocol, and reflects changes in the press and media environment.

The current Press and Media Protocol was agreed by Full Council on June 9, 2015. Since
then, there is much more emphasis on online and social media news coverage which means
the demands from the press and media are different and more fast-paced.

The updated protocol will assist the Marketing and Media team to manage press and media
communications and relationships on behalf of the Council, and provide guidance to all staff
and members.

It will assist the Council in providing information, promoting its services and developing its
image as an open and transparent organisation that is accountable to the local community. It

explains the principles that the Council adopts, whilst taking into account the national Code of
Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity in Wales.

Key changes include:

Inclusion of a new approvals process

Clarity on written statements and interviews
Reference to the Social Media Policy

Reference to out of hours and emergencies
Inclusion of new photography and filming guidelines
Inclusion of invitations to a photo call

Inclusion of invitations to events

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 18



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: DM Hockenhull Marketing and Media Manager

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

YES YES YES NONE YES YES NONE

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities
The updated protocol will ensure all media requests and communications are treated equally and fairly

2. Legal

The updated protocol builds on the previous protocol. It impacts on a number of existing policies, legislation and guidance
relating to communications, and the management of data and information. They include:

e Social Media Policy

e The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015

e The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) (EU) 2016/679
e Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015

e Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity in Wales
e Part 5.4 — Officers Code of Conduct (Revised 14.06.2012)

¢ Information Security Policy v4.1

e Data Protection article 7 and 8.

e Behavioural Standards in the Workplace Guidance

e Equality and Diversity

e Customer Complaints and Complaints Procedure

e Breaches of Security Policy

3. Finance

Media training for Executive Board Members, Chairs of Scrutiny Committees and other Committees, Directors and
nominated officers will have a cost implication.

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
e Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 19



5. Risk Management Issues

The updated protocol clarifies that all media relations and communications are to be managed by the Marketing and
Media team to avoid unauthorised or inaccurate information being provided to the media, and therefore placed in
the public domain. It provides all staff and members with clarity about what they should do if approached by a
member of the media.

It sets out a comprehensive approvals system to ensure all information released by the Council is agreed and
consistent, to minimise the risk of misinformation being put in to the public domain.

7. Staffing Implications

This updated protocol impacts on all employees of the Authority and provides all staff and members with clarity
about what they should do if approached by a member of the media. It also impacts on a number of existing policies,
legislation and guidance relating to communications, and the management of data and information. They include:

e Social Media Policy

e The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015

e The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) (EU) 2016/679
e Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015

e Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity in Wales
e Part 5.4 — Officers Code of Conduct (Revised 14.06.2012)

¢ Information Security Policy v4.1

e Data Protection article 7 and 8.

e Behavioural Standards in the Workplace Guidance

¢ Equality and Diversity

e Customer Complaints and Complaints Procedure

e Breaches of Security Policy

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
e Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 20



CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed DM Hockenhull Marketing and Media Manager

1. Scrutiny Committee
N/A

2.Local Member(s)

N/A

3.Community / Town Council
N/A

4 Relevant Partners
N/A

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THERE ARE NONE

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
e Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
g <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 21



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Marketing & Media

Press and Media Protocol

e Gﬁ:i EICH cvuel?narleinamdani
e Www.sirgar.liyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire ARSI . Tudalen 23
Y 4 YOur counciLdoitonline

ity Cow www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Contents

Introduction Page 3
Principles and objectives Page 4
Media enquiries Pages 5-8
Press releases Pages 9-11
Media access to Council proceedings/premises Page 12
Elections Page 13
Events Page 14
Social Media Page 15
Photography and Filming Pages 16-18
Advertising Page 19

Appendix A — Editors’ Code of Practice 2016
Appendix B — Invitations to photo-calls

Appendix C — Invitations to Events

Tudalen 24



Introduction

The press and media are essential channels of communication for the Council. Stakeholders
[residents, staff, Town and Community Councils and partner organisations] use them as the
primary source of information about the Council and its services. Social media is also an
important method for residents to access information about the Council and its services, and
to contact the Council.

This document has been produced to provide Members and Officers with information on the
basic protocol for working with the media as well as clear guidance in their roles and
responsibilities.

An effective Press and Media Protocol will assist the Council in providing information,
promoting its services and developing its image as an open and transparent organisation that
is accountable to the local community. The Council will continue to promote a culture of
openness and accessibility towards the media.

This protocol explains the principles that the Council adopts, whilst taking into account the
national Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity in Wales (the Code).
Local Authorities are required to 'have regard to the provisions' of this Code in the way they
approach communication.

The Code recognises the political nature of Local Government, and takes into account the
fact that some Local Authority publicity will deal with issues which are controversial because
of particular local circumstances, or because of a difference of view between political parties
locally and nationally. However, the principles do not prohibit the publication of information
on politically sensitive or controversial issues, nor stifle public debate. It sets out safeguards
and ensures the proper use of public funds for publicity.

The Code points out that the main purposes of Local Authority publicity are to ‘increase
public awareness of the services provided by the Authority and the functions it performs to
allow local people to have a real informed say about issues which affect them; to explain to
electors and ratepayers the reasons for particular policies and priorities; and in general to
improve local accountability’.

This protocol is designed to provide Officers and Members with clear guidance to follow
specifically when dealing with the press and media. It applies to all Officers and Members,
and also to arms-length companies and partner organisations when they are delivering
services on the Council’s behalf.

3 Tudalen 25



Principles and objectives

The Council is committed to effective communications so that residents of the county are
well informed about Council services, decisions and developments.

The Marketing and Media team undertakes to maintain a steady flow of information to the
media, and operate at all times within the Code.

Aims are:

To be open, honest, accurate and consistent in dealing with the media and to respond
to enquiries within journalists’ deadlines whenever possible; to provide an
explanation in the event it is not possible.

Maintain and raise public awareness of the services provided by the Authority and the
functions it performs.

Advance and ongoing publicity on matters of public interest; and to provide public
information.

To give those affected by the Council's decisions, policies and priorities the
information to understand them and how to participate in consultation and
engagement when relevant.

To ensure Welsh Language Standards are adhered to at all times.

To have regard to The Well-being of Future Generations Act.

To have regard to The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) (EU) 2016/679

To promote and highlight the successes and achievements of the Council and its
partners.

To ensure a co-ordinated response from one single point of contact, the Marketing
and Media team.

To ensure that statements and other material published on behalf of the Council
(including on the Council’s website) are not party political.

Tudalen 26



Media enquiries

All media enquiries made to the Council, in whatever form, are to be managed by the
Marketing and Media team.

Any member of staff that is approached by a member of the media should immediately
forward the request to pressoffice@carmarthenshire.gov.uk or 01267 224900 (ext 4900) and
not engage in conversation to avoid providing unauthorised and or inaccurate information or
unintentionally acting as a spokesperson of Carmarthenshire County Council.

The Marketing and Media team will only respond to media enquiries from a recognised
media organisation that is properly regulated by IPSO, Impress or similar. This is to ensure
there will be a proper process for complaints should the need arise. Email enquiries that do
not come from a recognised media organisation (for example @gmail, @hotmail etc) will be
required to prove they are representing a recognised media organisation.

The Marketing and Media team will not deal with any enquiries that are of a political nature.
In these cases, the journalist will be asked to contact the relevant political party leaders
directly.

The team will answer non-political enquiries on behalf of the Leader and Executive Board
Members on matters relevant to their portfolio. Where journalists contact Executive Board
Members directly they are at liberty to respond however are encouraged to provide the
Marketing and Media team with a summary of their response.

The Marketing and Media team will not answer enquiries on behalf of ward Councillors,
although will assist by offering advice if required.

Welsh Language Standards

Welsh Language Standards will be met at all times. All enquiries will be dealt with in the
language initiated and bilingual statements and speakers will be available at all times. Where
the Member or Officer concerned does not speak Welsh, a deputy or colleague should be
fully briefed and prepared to carry out Welsh language interviews when required.

Media response times

The nature of today’s media environment, in particular the immediacy of online news and
social media, means that set deadlines are very rare. In most circumstances, the media will
require a response on the same day, or even sooner.

The Marketing and Media team will prioritise enquiries that require an immediate response,
and use a categorisation system to decide when and how to engage Senior Officers and the
Executive Board.

The Marketing and Media team should be informed of preferred methods of contact to
ensure speed of response, and where possible notified when they have appointed a deputy
to deal with media enquiries during periods of their absence.

The Marketing and Media team will aim to answer all reasonable requests within the
deadline provided, and will liaise with the media to explain if this is not possible. Where
request response times are considered unreasonable, this will be discussed with the media
organisation involved so that a more reasonable timeframe is agreed. It will not always be
possible to respond to the media within their set deadlines.

5 Tudalen 27


mailto:pressoffice@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Approvals process

The Marketing and Media team uses a process for categorising media enquiries:

Category A

Request relates to a major incident (declared as a Silver/Gold Command), or a matter with
implications for serious reputational damage. Approved response required from the Leader
and/or relevant Executive Board Member, and Chief Executive and/or Director within one
hour, or response coordinated from Silver/Gold Command.

Category B

Request relates to a high profile incident, an opportunity to promote a high profile Council
initiative, or a matter with implications for some reputational damage. Answer is not
currently in the public domain. Approved response required from relevant Executive Board
Member and Director within four hours (unless a specific deadline is specified). Approved
statement copied to the Chief Executive.

Category C

Request relates to a topic without a risk of significant reputational damage, or is not related
to a Council priority. Approved response required by relevant Executive Board Member and
Head of Service/Third Tier Manager within 24 hours (unless a specific deadline is specified).

Category D

Request relates to information already in the public domain, or to a pre-approved statement.
Marketing and Media team to issue a response and notify the relevant Executive Board
Member and Head of Service/Third Tier Manager.

The Marketing and Media team should be informed of preferred methods of contact to
ensure speed of response, and where possible notified when approvals have been delegated
to a deputy or another Senior Officer.

Officers within service areas should be prepared to support the Marketing and Media team
with information gathering for enquiries, often at short notice, and may be asked to provide
bullet points of relevant details. The Duty Press Officer will draft statements/interview briefs
based on this information.

In general, it is the responsibility of the Manager or Head of Service to inform their Senior
Officer and Executive Board Member of any issues relevant to their department or portfolio.
They may also wish to extend this to ward Members, as they feel appropriate.

Statements
Statements will always be attributed to the appropriate Member and/or Senior Officer. The
term ‘spokesman/spokeswoman’ will not be used.

Where matters are of an operational or service-level nature, a statement will be made by the
relevant Senior Officer. For all other matters, including matters of policy, statements will be

Tudalen 28



made by the relevant Executive Board Member or Committee Chair. Statements will not be
made on behalf of ward Councillors.

‘No comment’ is not an acceptable response, unless it is absolutely unavoidable. It is
preferable to give a holding comment if information is not available in time for a media
deadline. A holding comment will be non-committal, but will acknowledge that the Council is
giving the matter concerned its attention.

In general, the statement will only be provided to the journalist that has requested it.
However, if there are several requests on the same topic the statement may be published on
the Council’'s Newsroom, or included as part of a press release for general issue.

Statements issued by the Council carry the legal defence of ‘qualified privilege’, so long as
they are fair and accurate. This defence also extends to verbal statements made by Local
Government Press Officers, so long as they are considered comments.

Interviews

Where an interview is requested by the media on a specific topic, this will be offered to the
relevant Executive Board Member and/or Senior Officer.

As with statements, where matters are of an operational or service-level nature, interviews
can be given by the relevant Senior Officer. For all other matters, including matters of policy,
interviews should be given by the relevant Executive Board Member or Committee Chair.
Efforts will also be made to accommodate media requests for a particular officer, or an
officer with particular knowledge or experience on a topic (i.e., about biodiversity).
Interviews will always be given in the language requested. Deputies or colleagues should be
prepared and briefed to provide Welsh language interviews where the relevant Executive
Board Member, Committee Chair or Senior Officer is unable to.

The Marketing and Media team will provide a brief in advance of the interview to give the
relevant Member or Officer as much information as possible to allow them to prepare. This
should include information, for example, about whether the interview will be live or pre-
recorded, whether it will be a direct conversation with a presenter or with a group of people
as a debate.

Consideration will be given to location to ensure it is appropriate to the interview topic.

On occasions, the Marketing and Media team may accompany interviews to offer support or
give further detail, and reserves the right to terminate interviews if required. Where this is
the case, a clear explanation should be provided, and the journalist given the opportunity to
re-submit their enquiry or request.

Requests about decisions at Council meetings

Journalists are encouraged to attend public meetings and watch webcasts of meetings (Full
Council, Executive Board, Planning Committee, Dyfed Powys Police and Crime Panel). Where
an enquiry relates to a debate or decision made at a Council meeting, journalists will be
referred to the relevant webcast archive or minutes (when available). No statements will be
provided ahead of a debate at a public meeting, instead journalists will be encouraged to
attend or watch the webcast/web archive to gather comments from Councillors as part of the
debate.

7 Tudalen 29



Detailed requests/Freedom of Information Act

Where a media enquiry asks for heavily detailed information, the Marketing and Media team
may suggest that it is submitted via the Freedom of Information Act.

This should only be the case where enquiries cannot be answered through the normal
process, where the response may take significantly longer or require a more in-depth process
of investigation by the relevant service area.

The team should make contact with the media organisation and explain why it may be
necessary to submit the enquiry under the Freedom of Information Act. Where such an
agreement is made, the enquiry should be immediately forwarded to the Freedom of
Information Officer, and the enquiry will be dated/timestamped at the point on which it was
first received by the Marketing and Media team.

The FOIA response should be copied to the Marketing and Media team for its records.

Recording enquiries

All media requests and statements/interviews provided will be digitally recorded by the
Marketing and Media team and used for future reference.

This will note a number of details, including the nature of the enquiry, who it was submitted
by and when, the response provided, who gave the necessary approval, and explanatory
notes.

Out of hours/emergencies

The Marketing and Media team is contactable out of hours in an emergency. Out of hours
support will be actioned by the Marketing and Media Manager, Director or Head of Service,
or Civil Contingency Officer.

Routine enquiries will only be dealt with during normal office hours.

Where members of the media are seeking assistance in relation to an emergency during
evenings and weekends, they should contact the Council’s out of hours call provider Llesiant
Delta Wellbeing and messages will be forwarded to the Duty Press Officer.

In the event of an emergency, the Marketing and Media team will send a message to media
contacts asking that they follow updates on the Council’s Newsroom and social media feeds.
In an emergency or ongoing high-profile incident, or where there is widespread disruption
owing to extreme weather, the Marketing and Media team will create a ‘Situation Update’
page on the Council’s Newsroom, accessible within the main corporate website.

This will be used as a central place for the publication of news updates throughout the event.
Information will also be shared on the Council’s social media feeds.

In most events of this nature, the Marketing and Media team will be involved in tactical or
strategic command groups, often working as part of a multi-agency response. Where multi-
agency communications are required, agreement should be sought from partners (such as
police, Natural Resources Wales etc) wherever possible.

Tudalen 30



Press releases

Despite the change in the media landscape, press releases are still an important and effective
method of communication.

Press releases will be issued by the Marketing and Media team on an official template from
the central email address/inbox ‘pressoffice@carmarthenshire.gov.uk’ which will give
members of the media the necessary reassurance that it is a legitimate press release.

The Marketing and Media team uses a media distribution list of local, regional and national
contacts, and has separate distribution lists for specialist topics/trade publications.

All press releases will be published on the Newsroom, on the Council’s corporate website.
Press releases will be factual in nature, or in the style of a feature on a particular topic, but
will not include anything that could be construed as politically motivated or biased. They will
not be used to promote political purposes or parties.

Priority will be given to stories that are high profile, in the public interest, identified as a
priority within the Executive Board’s forward work programme, or have immediate news
value. The Marketing and Media team reserves the right to refuse a request for a press
release if it is not newsworthy or does not provide value, in which case they will advise of
alternative methods of communication that may provide better coverage or engagement, for
example a social media post or a video clip.

Press releases will be written in a ‘news style’ used by the media to secure maximum
coverage.

Press releases issued by the Council carry the legal defence of ‘qualified privilege’, so long as
they are fair and accurate.

Quotes

Where matters are of an operational or service-level nature, the relevant Officer can be
qguoted — the level of seniority will depend on the nature of the story. For all other matters,
including matters of decision-making and policy, the relevant Executive Board Member or
Committee Chair will be quoted.

Generally, press releases will not include quotes from ward Councillors although they may
wish to speak to the media directly.

Approvals

All draft press releases should be fact-checked with the relevant service area, before being
sent to the Service Manager or Head of Service, and relevant Executive Board Member, for
approval.

A press release with implications for serious reputational damage, or regarding major
incident (categories A and B) should also be approved by the relevant Director or Chief
Executive and the Leader.

Approval must also be gained from everyone quoted within the press release.

In general, it is the responsibility of the Manager or Head of Service to inform their Senior
Officer and Executive Board Member of any issues of relevance to their department or
portfolio. They may also wish to extend this to ward Councillors, as they feel appropriate.

9 Tudalen 31



The Marketing and Media team has specialist experience in writing for press, and may on
occasions reject requested amends in favour of retaining news style. A full explanation should
be given if this is case.

Welsh Language Standards

All press releases will be issued bilingually.

In the event of an emergency, where Welsh translation is not immediately available, press
releases may be issued in English, although a Welsh version must follow at the earliest
opportunity. In this event, the press release should include advice that a Welsh language
version will follow.

Exclusives/media partnerships

The Marketing and Media team works closely with the media to build relationships and
secure coverage and exposure of key issues and campaigns.

In order to maximise coverage on a key topic, the Marketing and Media team may, on
occasions, pitch a story idea to a particular media organisation or contact and work with
them on an ‘exclusive’ basis. This should only be applied when there is a clear benefit to the
Council, and where the same benefit could not be achieved by treating all media equally, or
where a media organisation has asked to cover a particular issue and it would not be of
widespread interest to other media outlets.

Any paid-for editorial will be arranged and recorded through the Marketing and Media’s
advertising account. ‘Advertorials” will usually be marked as such. All paid-for editorial
content will be bilingual, as per Welsh Language Standards. See later section on advertising.

Embargoes

Although used sparingly, embargoes can be used when journalists may need time to prepare
their coverage on a particular issue, or when we are working with a partner organisation to
release certain information to the media.

Embargoes are not legally enforceable, although most media outlets will abide by them.
These should be discussed with the Director/Executive Board Member as part of the
approvals process.

Monitoring coverage

Press cuttings will not be routinely made or kept except in relation to a particular campaign,
but back copies of some printed publications will be kept by the Marketing and Media team
for up to three months.

Online coverage will also be monitored.

Particularly positive or negative media coverage will be brought to the attention of Officers in
the relevant service area and the Executive Board Member.

Tudglen 32



Errors/clarifications

Where a mistake or misrepresentation has been made in a media article, the Marketing and
Media team will seek a retraction, clarification or apology. This may require intervention from
the Council’s Legal Services team.

If a satisfactory response is not provided, the Council reserves the right to issue its own
clarification, and to publish this on the Newsroom and on social media, and to take any
further action required. Attention will be drawn to the Editor’s Code of Practice [Appendix A],
and if necessary representation will be made to the relevant media regulator (IPSO, Impress
or similar).

Covering Council meetings

The Marketing and Media team will cover key decisions made at Full Council and Executive
Board. Reports will be factual and will not include any political debate. Any quotes made at
these meetings will be used ‘verbatim’, and therefore will not require approval. Where a
statement is made outside of the meeting, and used within the press release, it should be
made clear that the comments were made following the meeting, and in this instance
approval will be sought from the relevant Member or Executive Board Member.

Press releases will be issued as soon as possible following the meeting.

For all other meetings, the team may issue a press release on a newsworthy topic or by
request of the Chair, but information in this instance will be gathered from the agenda and
minutes.

Reports of Council meetings carry the legal defence of ‘qualified privilege’.

Covering Council-led prosecutions

When the Council has successfully prosecuted an individual, business or organisation, the
Marketing and Media team will create a summary report of proceedings, including any
mitigation, and details of sentencing.
Reports should be issued as soon as possible following sentencing and approved by the
prosecuting solicitor and relevant Head of Service.
Fair and accurate reports of judicial proceedings held in public, and published
contemporaneously (as soon as is practically possible), carry the legal defence of ‘absolute
privilege’. Reports are ‘fair and accurate’ if they:

e Present a summary of the cases put by both sides

e Contain no substantial inaccuracies

e Avoids giving disproportionate weight to one side or the other

11 Tudalen 33



Media access to Council proceedings/premises

Any requests made by the media to access, film or record on Council premises should be
made via the Marketing and Media team. An online form is available on the Newsroom
section of the Council website which requires relevant details and a copy of public liability
insurance. See later section on video/filming.

Filming of Council meetings will not be permitted unless otherwise agreed with the relevant
Chair.

Members of the media will be treated in the same way as members of the public so far as
access to public/private meetings and exempt items are concerned. See Local Government
Act 2000.

Tudglen 34



Elections

The period between the notice of an election and the election itself should preclude
proactive publicity in all its forms of candidates and other politicians involved directly in the
election. Publicity should not deal with controversial issues or report views, proposals or
recommendations in such a way that identifies them with individual Members or groups of
Members. However, it is acceptable for the Authority to respond in appropriate
circumstances to events and legitimate service enquiries provided that their answers are
factual and not party political.

Members holding key political positions should be able to comment in an emergency or
where there is a genuine need for a Member level response to an important event outside
the Authority's control. Proactive events arranged in this period should not involve Members,
AMs or MPs.

Specific guidance and advice is available for staff and Members from the Electoral Services
team. This may be shared with the media.

13 Tudalen 35



Events

Generally, events should be organised by the relevant service area. The Marketing and Media
team will provide PR support where required, including booking a photographer.

The Marketing and Media team coordinates major events on behalf of the Authority and may
organise high profile events that cross a number of departments, where there is an
opportunity to raise the profile of the Council, or where the Council’s reputation could be at
risk.

Events where Councillors are required to attend should be arranged by (or with) the
Democratic Services Unit to ensure appropriate information and guidance is available for

Members.

See Appendix B (Invitations to a Photo Call) and Appendix C (Invitations to Events) for further
guidance.

Tudalen 36



Social Media

The Marketing and Media team manage social media on behalf of the Authority overall,
although some approved accounts are managed by relevant service areas.

Care should be taken to ensure any information published on social media is accurate, fair,
legal and appropriate. The Council’s Social Media Policy must be adhered to at all times.

As well as being used as a promotion and engagement method, social media is increasingly
used by members of the public to contact the Council. This type of enquiry is handled by the
customer service team within Marketing and Media.

Further information can be found within the Council’s Social Media Policy and Best Practice
Guidelines.

15 Tudalen 37


https://ourpeople.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/654947/social-media-policy-2018.pdf

Photography and Filming

Good quality photography and video are an important element of most Marketing and Media
work and almost always ensures greater media coverage and engagement on digital
channels, such as websites and social media feeds.

The Marketing and Media team operates a photography framework to commission freelance
photographers, therefore it is important that any paid photography work commissioned by
any department utilises this framework. The team also records video footage of events or
interviews with Members, staff, and members of the public, or commissions a private
company to record video on their behalf.

The Marketing and Media team will identify whether photographs or video footage is
required to accompany a press release (whether it has news value and is likely to be used by
the media) or whether the image or video can be used for marketing purposes (i.e., as part of
a tourism campaign). If this is the case, the Marketing and Media team will advise and take
the lead on bookings.

Where a photograph or video is not required for the media, or marketing purposes identified
by the Marketing and Media team, each service area must arrange and pay for such services
using the Council’s approved framework.

Photographs for media

Photographs intended for use in the media have the best effect when minimal people are
included in the frame. The Marketing and Media team will advise about who should be
included in the image. This will usually involve the invitation of the Executive Board
Member/s and Senior Officers, as well as any partners (See Appendix B — Invitations to a
Photo Call). Priority should be given to the Executive Board Member/s or Senior Officer.

The media may have a particular request for an image, and to ensure maximum coverage we
will endeavour to meet their request. This may involve images that don’t include Councillors.
A brief will be agreed with the department and the photographer in advance.

To ensure Marketing and Media maintains control of images they commission from a
framework photographer, no members of staff are permitted to take their own versions of a
photograph that has been set up. A copy of the agreed photograph can be sent on the
relevant service by Marketing and Media.

Photography and filming for campaigns, reports or graphic displays

Where photographs or video are required to support a particular campaign, or for use in
corporate documents or displays, there is no requirement to invite Members or Officers.
Anyone commissioning photography or filming for this purpose should seek advice from
Marketing and Media team about specific requirements. A brief will be agreed with the
department and the photographer/production company in advance.

Providing a clear brief

A detailed brief must be provided for all photography and filming commissions, setting out
the expectations from the photographer or production company, both in terms of the
images/footage required and the agreed time requirement and cost. A template is available
for staff on the Intranet.

Tudglen 38



The photographer/production company will only supply images or video as per this agreed
brief. Please be aware that further requests made on the day may be subject to extra
charges.

Use of images and storage of images and footage — copyright and General Data Protection
Regulations (GDPR)

Copyright of all images and video supplied to the Council by commissioned photographers or
production companies, or shot by staff during their working day (for work purposes), belongs
to Carmarthenshire County Council.

Members of staff who take photographs or video during their working day for work purposes
will be required to assign the copyright of their images/footage to Carmarthenshire County
Council, and must ensure copyright and GDPR legislation is upheld in the same way as
contracted photographers or production companies.

Members of staff are not permitted to use their own personal devices or equipment to
download or store images or footage for work purposes to ensure compliance with this
legislation.

All members of staff have a legal duty to ensure that any images or footage they use for
publicity either belongs to Carmarthenshire County Council, has specific consent for use
(implied consent or credit is not sufficient), or is clearly marked as copyright/royalty free.
Images or footage must not be downloaded from third-party websites, including Google, and
used without permission as this could have legal implications for the Council.

Images or footage sent to the media and shared on websites and social media, should only be
used in the context of which they were released. In all cases, copyright will remain with
Carmarthenshire County Council.

Anyone included in a photograph or video should give their consent and be given a
reasonable explanation about how and where the image/footage might be used. This also
applies to members of staff using photographs or video within their own publications or
digital platforms, or submitting to the Marketing and Media team for use in corporate
publicity. Particular care should be taken when re-using images or footage taken more than
six months previous to ensure consent is still in place.

To ensure compliance with copyright and GDPR legislation, all photographs and footage must
be stored by the Marketing and Media team together with relevant file information to ease
retrieval.

See the Marketing and Media team’s Privacy Notice for information about storage and use of
photographs and video, in relation to compliance of GDPR.

Requests for photography and filming on Council premises

Any person who is not employed by Carmarthenshire County Council and wants to take
photographs or film on Council-owned property and land for the purpose of publicity or to
share publicly (whether on a commercial or non-commercial basis) should first seek
permission from the Marketing and Media team who will liaise with the relevant Service
Manager. The Council will need to be satisfied that there is a legitimate reason for the
request, that relevant risk assessments have been undertaken, that there is adequate Public
Liability Insurance cover for the activity, and that all necessary consents from members of the
public are in place to ensure compliance with GDPR.

An e-form is available on the Council’s website for media and external companies to request
permission for photography and filming. In all cases, we will endeavour to assist and have

17 Tudalen 39



permissions in place before the specified dates, and as such sufficient time should be
allowed.

Tudglen 40



Advertising

The advertising function is managed centrally by the Marketing and Media team and all
requests for promotional advertising and statutory advertising, notices and vacancies should
be made to them. This includes printed, social, digital and broadcast. This is to ensure all
money spent on advertising is effective value for money to contain corporate spend, and so
that it is recorded for audit purposes.

It ensures that there is consistency in the style and content of advertisements, that they are
in line with corporate guidelines regarding branding and Welsh Language Standards, and
allows the Council to more effectively manage its use of advertising.

Each request to advertise is considered by the Marketing and Media team based on criteria
including circulation data, value for money, whether or not it is appropriate to advertise,
what means of advertising is the most appropriate, timelines, whether evaluation and
monitoring is in place, whether evidence of effectiveness is available, or whether promotion
could be achieved via another method such as press, web or social media.

According to the Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity in Wales, any
decision to take advertising space in a publication produced by a voluntary, industrial or
commercial organisation should only be made on the grounds it provides an effective and
efficient means of securing the desired publicity.

19 Tudalen 41



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



independent
press standards
organisation

IpSO

The Independent Press Standards
Organisation (IPSO), as regulator, is
charged with enforcing the following
Code of Practice, which was framed
by the Editors’ Code of Practice
Committee and is enshrined in the
contractual agreement between
IPSO and newspaper, magazine and
electronic news publishers.

The Code — including this preamble and the public
interest exceptions below — sets the framework for the
highest professional standards that members of the
press subscribing to the Independent Press Standards
Organisation have undertaken to maintain. It is the
cornerstone of the system of voluntary self-regulation

to which they have made a binding contractual
commitment. It balances both the rights of the individual
and the public’s right to know.

To achieve that balance, it is essential that an agreed
Code be honoured not only to the letter, but in the full
spirit. It should be interpreted neither so narrowly as to
compromise its commitment to respect the rights of the
individual, nor so broadly that it infringes the fundamental
right to freedom of expression — such as to inform, to be
partisan, to challenge, shock, be satirical and fo entertain
— or prevents publication in the public interest.

It is the responsibility of editors and publishers to
apply the Code to editorial material in both printed and
online versions of their publications. They should take
care to ensure it is observed rigorously by all editorial
staff and external contributors, including non-journalists.

Editors must maintain in-house procedures to
resolve complaints swiftly and, where required to do
so, cooperate with IPSO. A publication subject to an
adverse adjudication must publish it in full and with due
prominence, as required by IPSO.

i) The Press must take care not to publish inaccurate,
misleading or distorted information or images,
including headlines not supported by the text.

i) A significant inaccuracy, misleading statement or

distortion must be corrected, promptly and with due

prominence, and — where appropriate — an apology
published. In cases involving IPSO, due prominence
should be as required by the regulator.

A fair opportunity to reply to significant inaccuracies

should be given, when reasonably called for.

iv) The Press, while free to editorialise and campaign,
must distinguish clearly between comment, conjecture
and fact.

v) A publication must report fairly and accurately the
outcome of an action for defamation to which it has
been a party, unless an agreed settlement states
otherwise, or an agreed statement is published.

i) Everyone is entitled to respect for his or her private and
family life, home, health and correspondence, including
digital communications.

ii) Editors will be expected to justify intrusions into any

individual’s private life without consent. Account will

be taken of the complainant’s own public disclosures

of information.

It is unacceptable to photograph individuals, without

their consent, in public or private places where there is a

reasonable expectation of privacy.

i) Journalists must not engage in intimidation, harassment
or persistent pursuit.

ii) They must not persist in questioning, telephoning,
pursuing or photographing individuals once asked to
desist; nor remain on property when asked to leave and
must not follow them. If requested, they must identify
themselves and whom they represent.

iii) Editors must ensure these principles are observed
by those working for them and take care not to use
non-compliant material from other sources.

The Editors’ Code of Practice

In cases involving personal grief or shock, enquiries and
approaches must be made with sympathy and discretion
and publication handled sensitively. These provisions
should not restrict the right to report legal proceedings.

When reporting suicide, to prevent simulative acts care
should be taken to avoid excessive detail of the method
used, while taking into account the media’s right to
report legal proceedings.

All pupils should be free to complete their time at school
without unnecessary intrusion.

They must not be approached or photographed at
school without permission of the school authorities.
Children under 16 must not be interviewed or
photographed on issues involving their own or another
child’s welfare unless a custodial parent or similarly
responsible adult consents.

Children under 16 must not be paid for material
involving their welfare, nor parents or guardians for
material about their children or wards, unless it is clearly
in the child’s interest.

Editors must not use the fame, notoriety or position of

a parent or guardian as sole justification for publishing
details of a child’s private life.

The press must not, even if legally free to do so, identify
children under 16 who are victims or witnesses in cases
involving sex offences.

In any press report of a case involving a sexual offence
against a child —

The child must not be identified.

The adult may be identified.

The word “incest” must not be used where a child victim
might be identified.

Care must be taken that nothing in the report implies
the relationship between the accused and the child.

Journalists must identify themselves and obtain
permission from a responsible executive before entering
non-public areas of hospitals or similar institutions to
pursue enquiries.

The restrictions on intruding into privacy are particularly
relevant to enquiries about individuals in hospitals or
similar instfitutions.

Relatives or friends of persons convicted or accused

of crime should not generally be identified without their
consent, unless they are genuinely relevant to the story.
Particular regard should be paid to the potentially
vulnerable position of children who witness, or are
victims of, crime. This should not restrict the right fo
report legal proceedings.

The press must not seek to obtain or publish material
acquired by using hidden cameras or clandestine
listening devices; or by intercepting private or mobile
telephone calls, messages or emails; or by the
unauthorised removal of documents or photographs; or
by accessing digitally-held information without consent.
Engaging in misrepresentation or subterfuge, including
by agents or intermediaries, can generally be justified
only in the public interest and then only when the
material cannot be obtained by other means.

The press must not identify victims of sexual assault or
publish material likely to contribute to such identification
unless there is adequate justification and they are legally
free to do so.

The press must avoid prejudicial or pejorative
reference to an individual’s, race, colour, religion, sex,
gender identity, sexual orientation or to any physical or
mental illness or disability.

Details of an individual’s race, colour, religion, gender
identity, sexual orientation, physical or mental illness or
disability must be avoided unless genuinely relevant to
the story.

January 2016

i) Even where the law does not prohibit it, journalists must
not use for their own profit financial information they
receive in advance of its general publication, nor should
they pass such information to others.

i) They must not write about shares or securities in whose
performance they know that they or their close families
have a significant financial interest without disclosing the
interest to the editor or financial editor.

iii) They must not buy or sell, either directly or through
nominees or agents, shares or securities about which
they have written recently or about which they intend to
write in the near future.

Journalists have a moral obligation to protect
confidential sources of information.

i) No payment or offer of payment to a witness — or

any person who may reasonably be expected to be

called as a witness — should be made in any case once

proceedings are active as defined by the Contempt of

Court Act 1981. This prohibition lasts until the suspect

has been freed unconditionally by police without charge

or bail or the proceedings are otherwise discontinued;
or has entered a guilty plea to the court; or, in the event
of a not guilty plea, the court has announced its verdict.

Where proceedings are not yet active but are likely and

foreseeable, editors must not make or offer payment

to any person who may reasonably be expected to be
called as a witness, unless the information concerned
ought demonstrably to be published in the public
interest and there is an

over-riding need to make or promise payment for this

to be done; and all reasonable steps have been taken

to ensure no financial dealings influence the evidence
those witnesses give. In no circumstances should such
payment be conditional on the outcome of a trial.

*iii) Any payment or offer of payment made to a person
later cited to give evidence in proceedings must be
disclosed to the prosecution and defence. The witness
must be advised of this requirement.

*

i) Payment or offers of payment for stories, pictures or
information which seek to exploit a particular crime or to
glorify or glamorise crime in general, must not be made
directly or via agents to convicted or confessed criminals
or to their associates — who may include family, friends
and colleagues.

i) Editors invoking the public interest to justify payment or
offers would need to demonstrate that there was good
reason to believe the public inferest would be served. If,
despite payment, no public interest emerged, then the
material should not be published.

There may be exceptions to the clauses marked * where they

can be demonstrated to be in the public interest.

1. The public interest includes, but is not confined to:

i. Detecting or exposing crime, or the threat of crime, or
serious impropriety.

ii. Profecting public health or safety.

iii. Protecting the public from being misled by an action or
statement of an individual or organisation.

iv. Disclosing a person or organisation’s failure or likely
failure to comply with any obligation to which they are
subject.

v. Disclosing a miscarriage of justice.

vi. Raising or contributing to a matter of public debate,

including serious cases of impropriety, unethical conduct

or incompetence concerning the public.

Disclosing concealment, or likely concealment, of any of

the above.

There is a public interest in freedom of expression itself.

3. The regulator will consider the extent to which material
is already in the public domain or will or will become so.

4. Editors invoking the public interest will need to demonstrate
that they reasonably believed publication — or journalistic
activity taken with a view to publication — would both serve,
and be proportionate fo, the public inferest and explain
how they reached that decision at the time.

5. An exceptional public] m(tlg d §
demonstrated to ov;[l'-i & e%ll" a ypﬁ ount

interests of children under 16.

vii.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Appendix B - Invitations to a Photo Call
The following table should be used for guidance when inviting Members, Officers and Partners to attend a photo call for media coverage.

Our aim is to not exceed six people in a press/social image. Please be mindful of causing embarrassment by inviting additional parties without prior
agreement with the Marketing and Media team. Please refer to the ‘Photography and Filming’ section of the Press and Media Protocol for further guidance.

Invitations should be extended to the following, in order of priority

1% priority / 2™ priority / 3™ priority / 4™ priority

Major event Official Cutting of the Local event
openings/launches sod/development or
project launch

Leader 1 1 1

Relevant Executive Board Member(s) 1 1 1 1
(2 max, incl. leader)

Chairman 1 1 1
Vice Chairman 2 2 2
Relevant Ward Member(s) 1 1 1
Chief Executive 1 1 1

Relevant Director(s) 2 2 2

Relevant Head(s) of Service 3 3 3

Service Manager/Senior Officer 4 4 4

Partner or project representative(s) (2 max) 1 1 1 1

G us|fepnL

Explanatory notes

Major events — for example, large audience, county-wide/national interest

Official openings/launches — for example, school or new building and facility openings

Cutting of the sod/development or project launch — for example, start of works on new schools/buildings, small project launches
Local events — for example, flag raising ceremonies, open days, local interest, community events supported CCC



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Ly usrepny

Appendix C - Invitations to Events

The following table should be used for guidance when inviting Members, Officers and Partners to attend an official opening.

Please refer to the ‘Events’ and ‘Photography and Filming’ sections of the Press and Media Protocol for further guidance on invitation for photo call.

Major event Official openings/launches Cutting of the Local event
sod/development or
project launch
Leader X X X
Relevant Executive Board Member(s) X X X
Chair or Vice Chair X X
Consort or Vice Chair Consort X X
Leader of the opposition X X X
Chief Executive X X X
Relevant Director(s) X X X
Relevant Head(s) of Service or Service X X X X
Manager
Partner representative(s) X X X

Explanatory notes

Major events — for example, large audience, county-wide/national interest
Official openings/launches — for example, school or new building and facility openings

Cutting of the sod/development or project launch — for example, start of works on new schools/buildings, small project launches

Local events — for example, flag raising ceremonies, open days, local interest, community events supported CCC




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 8

Bwrdd Gweithredol
20fed lonawr 2020

Adroddiad Monitro Cyllideb Refeniw y Cyngor

Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol Sydd Eu Hangen:

Sicrhau bod y bwrdd yn derbyn yr adroddiad Monitro Cyllideb ac yn ystyried y sefyllfa
cyllidebol.

Mae gorwariant sylweddol posibl o hyd ar lefel adrannol. Dylai’r Prif Swyddogion a’r Penaethiaid
barhau i adolygu eu sefyllfaoedd cyllidebol yn feirniadol a pharhau i roi ar waith bob
gweithrediad priodol angenrheidiol, er mwyn cadw o fewn yr adnoddau a ddosbarthwyd, fel
mater o frys, gan gydnabod, oni chant sylw, y bydd y rhain yn parhau i effeithio ar gyllidebau
blynyddoedd i ddod.

Y Rhesymau:

| ddarparu’r newyddion i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol ynglyn a sefylifa diweddaraf cyllideb 2019/20, ar
31ain Hydref 20109.

Ymgynghorwyd a'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol: AMHERTHNASOL

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES
Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-

Cyng. David Jenkins

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Swyddi: Rhif ffébn: 01267 224886
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

Enw Cyfarwyddwr y Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau | CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk
Gwasanaeth: Corfforaethol

Chris Moore

Awdur yr Adroddiad: Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Rhemingway@carmarthen
Randal Hemingway Ariannol shire.gov.uk

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 49



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Executive Board
20™ January 2020

The revenue budget monitoring reports for the period to 31st October 2019 are attached and
indicate that:

COUNCIL FUND REVENUE ACCOUNT (Appendix A)

Overall, the monitoring report forecasts an end of year overspend of £3,512k on the Authority’s
net revenue budget with an overspend at departmental level of £5,035k.

The most significant pressure points are within Education and Children’s Services and the
department needs to critically examine the current forecasted position.

Chief Executive’s Department

The Chief Executive Department is anticipating an underspend of £18k for the year. This is
made up of a £339k overspend relating to non-delivery of Corporate Savings and a £357k net
underspend on operational budgets.

Corporate Savings: £290k Non-delivery of the efficiency proposal in relation to Health & Safety
and a £49k shortfall in Standby efficiency delivery.

Operational budgets (£E357k underspend):

The Chief Executive’s section are anticipating an underspend of £4k due to a small saving on
supplies and services.

There is an anticipated £20k underspend in the People Management section. This is largely due
to a saving on supplies and services within Business and Projects support of £16k and other
very small underspends.

The ICT & Corporate Policy section are anticipating a £125k underspend due to part year
vacant posts within the division.

Admin and Law are anticipating an underpend of £37k, this includes an £18k overspend on
Land Charges due to a decline in demand for searches, and a £36k overspend in Legal
services as a result of an additional responsibility allowance and a regrading not being
budgeted for. There were also small overspends on Democratic Services Support and Civic
Ceremonial. This is offset by a £104k underspend in Democratic services on printing, Members
allowances and an increase in Members time charged to the HRA.

The Marketing and Media section are anticipating a £21k net overspend. This is largely due to
an overspend of £120k within Marketing and Media on salary costs pending a staffing review
within the whole division and also a loss of income streams from external partners (e.g. £80k
from ERW) however potential alternative income streams are currently being sought. This is
offset by an underspend on staffing costs in the Customer Services centres of £42k, £35k
underspend within the Translation unit, and £25k within Marketing Tourism Development all due
to vacant posts. These will all form part of the divisional staffing review due to be completed
during this financial year.

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 50



The Electoral Services section is anticipating a £123k underspend for this financial year. This is
due to £40k of additional income within Registrars following a statutory increase in fees, a £37k
underspend in Electoral Services due to vacant posts and a £25k underspend on Coroners fees
which fluctuates according to demand for the service. There is also an anticipated £20k
underspend on Registration of Electors following receipt of a contribution from the Cabinet
Office towards the costs of Individual electoral registration.

The Regeneration division is anticipating a £68k underspend for the year. This is made up of an
overspend of £27k due to costs associated with meeting the Authority’s objective to reduce
carbon emissions in the forthcoming years; a net £27k overspend on admin buildings mainly
due to a proposed rental income efficiency for Ty'r Nant no longer being achievable as the
building is in the process of being sold; a £149k overspend at Nantyci Livestock market due to
an anticipated shortfall in rental income and a £61k overspend on Provision Markets due to a
reduction in lettings income as a result of market forces dictating that lettings rates are unable to
keep up with budgeted income targets. This is offset by additional income of £147k in
commercial properties and £110k in Industrial Premises due to high occupancy levels. There is
also an anticipated £27k underspend on Regeneration Management due to staff time being
charged to the City Deal project and a vacant post in Property resulting in a £47k underspend.

Department for Communities
The Department for Communities is projecting an £982k overspend for the year

Performance data shows increased demographic pressure on demand in line with national
information that shows a year on year increase in Older People of 3.4%. Cost of agency staff at
residential homes is expected to be £228k overspent due to workforce recruitment issues in
parts of the county. There has been a significant increase in demand for domiciliary care that
has only been partly offset by a fall in residential care placements, £237k overspend. Integrated
Care Fund initiatives such as Releasing Time to Care resulting in lower demand e.g. for double
handed care packages are being applied to try to reduce these costs. Private sector homes are
also feeling the impact of greater demand predicting £213k overspend.

Physical Disabilities services hold several vacancies (mainly occupational therapists) resulting
in £68k savings. Performance data shows pressure on demand for Direct Payments with this
client group which will result in an overspend of £150k.

In Learning Disability services there is an overspend in Employment & Training re slower than
anticipated delivery of savings of £109k; staff vacancies across the Division of -£134k, and
pressures on packages of care of £50k resulting in the LD net overspend of £25k.

Professional fees relating to increased number of Deprivation of Liberty Standards (DoLS)
referrals will result in an overspend of £16k.

Leisure Services are predicting a nil variance.
Housing & Public Protection Services are predicting a £3k underspend.

Corporate Services
The Corporate Services Department is projecting a £686k underspend for the year.

wor Sir GAr A EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 51



This is due to £447k of vacant posts, a £190k underspend in pre LGR pension costs, a £17k
underspend on grant audit fees and a £9k reduction in our new bank contract costs. There is
also £35k of net additional income from a new S151 support arrangement with M&WWFA.

Department for Education and Children
The Department for Education and Children is forecasting a net overspend of £1,082k at year
end.

The main adverse budget variations relate to: increased demand for Special Educational Needs
provision £676k; school based EVR and redundancy costs £86k; Education Other Than At
School £166k; School Modernisation property decommissioning costs £105k; One off net
balances of closed schools transferring back to the department £53k; School Meals & breakfast
service sickness cover and kitchens’ maintenance £77k ; Music Service running costs (mainly
staff) exceeding the SLA income from schools by £166k; Dispute with LHB regarding the
partnership arrangement for Garreglwyd Residential Unit £78Kk; Legal costs within Childrens’
Services £58k based on year to date demand.

This is partially offset by staff vacancies and the utilisation of additional grants and external
income to support core spend -£359k.

Schools Delegated Budgets

Schools working budgets are predicting a net overspend in year of approximately £3m. The
year-end position 2018/19 resulted in a net deficit on school reserves of £373k which is a
significant change from the historical situation of holding healthy school reserves within the
balance sheet. The position is being considered in detail by the Directors in liaison with Portfolio
Members, and a further report with corrective actions will be presented at the earliest
opportunity.

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 52



Environment
The department is anticipating an overspend of £675k for the financial year, largely due to
pressures within Planning and School Transport.

The Waste and Environmental Services division is projecting a £115k overspend. There is a
£56k anticipated overspend on green waste collection as it is not yet self-financing and a third
vehicle has now been introduced to cater for potential additional customers. The cleansing
service is overspent by £63k. Service reviews have commenced to look at ways to reduce costs
within the service. The Sustainable Drainage Approval Body Unit is likely to overspend by £70k
for the year due to anticipated income not materialising based on current income trends. Landfill
sites are also predicted to overspend by £8k.This is offset by an anticipated underspend of £83k
on public conveniences as a result of the capital repayment element being deducted from the
Danfo final quarter cost, due to the end of the contract term.

Highways and Transportation are anticipating a £158k overspend for the year. This is down to a
projected £297k overspend on school transport due to increases in the number of pupils with
additional learning needs, a number of successful appeals along with increased contractor costs
and an increased minimum wage. There is also a £92k anticipated overspend in car parks due
to the temporary loss of spaces in St Peters car park and also a general reduction in the volume
of car parking fees. There has also been vacant Civil Enforcement Officers posts during the
year leading to a reduction in penalty charge notices income. This is offset by a £130k
underspend on Traffic Management due to an increase in income from Traffic regulation orders
and salary savings on 2 vacant posts during the year. Street Works and Highways adoption are
also anticipating an £82k underspend due to additional income from highway adoption
agreements.

Planning Division is anticipating a £407k overspend for the year. There is a projected £446k
shortfall in development management income, but this overspend is partially offset by additional
income generated from running training courses at the Tywi centre.

The Business Support Division is expecting to be £31k underspent largely due to a few short
term vacant posts during the year.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (Appendix B)

The HRA is predicting to be underspent by £333k for 2019/20. Repairs and Maintenance is
likely to be overspent by £83k mainly due to additional servicing/breakdown costs; Supervision
& Management is projecting an underspend of £10k mainly due to staff related travelling costs.
Provision for bad debt will be underspent by £14k. Capital financing charges will be £333k less
than budgeted due to a slight reduction in interest rates and an underspend on the capital
programme.

Income (inclusive of rents) will be increased by approximately £59k.

Lists of the main variances are attached to this report.

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 53



DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /

Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Chris Moore Director of Corporate Services

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE YES NONE NONE NONE NONE
1. Finance

Council Fund
Overall, the Authority is forecasting an overspend of £3,512k.

HRA
The HRA is predicting to be underspent by £333k for 2019/20.

CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below
Signed:  Chris Moore Director of Corporate Services

1. Scrutiny Committee — Not applicable
2.Local Member(s) — Not applicable
3.Community / Town Council — Not applicable

4.Relevant Partners — Not applicable

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations — Not applicable

wor Sir GAr A EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire

o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 54



Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
2019/20 Budget Corporate Services Department, County Hall,
Carmarthen

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“ty Cowt® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 55



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



APPENDIX A

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES

EXECUTIVE BOARD 20™ JANUARY 2020

COUNCIL'S BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2019/20

Director and Designation

C Moore, Director of Corporate Services

Author & Designation

R Hemingway, Head of Financial Services

Telephone No

01267 224886

Directorate

Corporate Services

Table 1
Forecasted for year to 31st March 2020
Oct 19 Aug 19
Department Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted
Controllable | Controllable Net Non Total Controllable | Controllable Net Non Total Variance for Variance for
Expenditure Income Controllable Net Expenditure Income Controllable Net Year Year
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive 30,974 -13,396 -2,097 15,480 30,788 -13,229 -2,097 15,462 -18 288
Communities 148,903 -61,379 10,785 98,309 148,952 -60,445 10,784 99,291 982 811
Corporate Services 78,627 -51,091 -1,216 26,320 81,364 -54,513 -1,216 25,634 -686 -579
Education & Children (incl. Schools) 170,023 -29,757 26,106 166,372 176,274 -31,925 26,106 170,454 4,082 4,060
Environment 122,857 -79,402 11,898 55,353 134,265 -90,135 11,898 56,028 675 980
Departmental Expenditure 551,383 -235,024 45,475 361,834 571,643 -250,248 45,474 366,870 5,035 5,560
Capital Charges/Interest/Corporate -20,497 -21,697 -1,200 -750
Levies and Contributions:
Brecon Beacons National Park 138 138 0 0
Mid & West Wales Fire & Rescue Authority 9,838 9,838 0 0
Net Expenditure 351,313 355,149 3,835 4,810
Transfers to/from Departmental Reserves
- Chief Executive 0 9 9 -288
- Corporate Services 0 343 343 290
- Environment 0 -675 -675 -980
Net Budget 351,313 354,824 3,512 3,831

LG usjepnyt




EXECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

Chief Executive Department
Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019

8g usjepn|

Oct 19 Aug 19

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted
Net non- Net non- Variance for Variance for

Division Expenditure Income controllable Net Expenditure Income controllable Net Year Year

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive 495 0 -739 -244 830 -1 -739 90 334 330
People Management 4,337 -1,419 -2,457 461 5,247 -2,349 -2,457 441 -20 12
ICT & Corporate Policy 5,620 -941 -4,709 -30 5,439 -885 -4,709 -155 -125 -145
Admin and Law 4,170 -804 735 4,101 4,101 =773 735 4,063 -37 a4
Marketing & Media 2,853 -863 -1,498 493 2,591 -580 -1,498 513 21 30
Statutory Services 1,269 -295 341 1,315 1,341 -489 341 1,193 -123 -158
Regeneration & Property 12,229 -9,074 6,230 9,384 11,240 -8,154 6,230 9,316 -68 175
GRAND TOTAL 30,974 -13,396 -2,097 15,480 30,788 -13,229 -2,097 15,462 -18 288




Chief Executive Department - Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019

Main Variances
EXECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

Working Budget Forecasted Oct 19 Aug 19
m m <
g . g . 23 53
Division g__ § S__ § g-f % § Notes g % g
£ ® £ ® 38 38
o o e a o
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive
£290k Corporate Health & Safety efficiency proposal not yet implemented; £49k
Corporate Savings Target -339 0 0 0 339 standby efficiency less than originally proposed. 339
People Management
Business & Projects Support 268 0 252 0 -16 Savings on supplies & Services -16
ICT & Corporate Policy
Information Technology 4,581 -864 4,488 -800 -28 A few posts temporarily vacant during year 0
Welsh Language 180 -10 140 -10 -40 Vacant Post pending team review -41
Chief Executive-Policy 829 -67 743 -30 -49 Part year vacant posts pending section review -99
Admin and Law
Members time recharged to HRA greater than budgeted (£33k), savings on
members allowances (£46k), savings on supplies & services inc printing and
Democratic Services 1,836 -256 1,764 -289 -104 telephones (£25k) -8
Land Charges 151 -294 114 -239 18 Reduction in income due to housing market fluctuations 18
Legal Services 1,637 -254 1,653 -234 36 Additional responsibility allowance and re-grading not budgeted for 36
Marketing & Media
Overspend on salaries pending divisional realignment. Loss of income streams from
external partners (eg. ERW £80k). Looking at alternative potential partnership
Marketing and Media 594 -368 469 -122 120 arrangements. 118
Translation 522 -35 491 -39 -35 Part year vacant posts pending divisional realignment -57
Customer Services Centres 1,104 -336 1,062 -336 -42 Part year vacant posts pending divisional realignment -31
Marketing Tourism Development 343 -1 319 -2 -25 Part year vacant posts pending divisional realignment -5
Statutory Services
— In year contribution from the Cabinet Office towards individual electoral registration
(Begistration Of Electors 163 -2 172 -31 -20 costs (£31k) 0
- Recent increase in statutory fees, some of the additional income to be utilised to
Eegistrars 418 -293 542 -457 -40 complete certain digitisation projects. -95
oroners 401 0 376 0 -25 Lower demand on service in year -24
Eectoral Services - Staff 279 0 242 0 -37 A few posts temporarily vacant during year. Not yet filled -40
O1

O



ECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

Chief Executive Department -

Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019
Main Variances

09 uglepnL

Working Budget Forecasted Oct 19 Aug 19
o B [ _ 5T s 3
3 a 3 a <53 <3
PP (2]
Division % g % g g § § Notes g § §
c @ c @ —- @ —- @
3 3 Sao S o
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Regeneration & Property
Property 1,176 -42 1,127 -40 -47 Post vacant during year. Due to be filled. -0
Commercial Properties 31 -521 44 -681 -147 High Occupancy Levels resulting in additional income -79
Provision Markets 566 -638 569 -579 61 Reduction in Lettings income due to market forces impacting rates achievable. 49
Costs associated with the authority's commitment to reduce carbon in the
Net Zero Carbon Local Authority 0 0 27 0 27 forthcoming years 90
Proposed rental income efficiency of £50k for Ty'r Nant is no longer achievable as
building is in the process of being sold. This is partially offset by various small
Administrative Buildings 2,740 -764 2,731 -729 27 savings on supplies and services. 50
Industrial Premises 529 -1,567 462 -1,610 -110 High Occupancy Levels resulting in additional income -57
Livestock Markets 58 -205 19 -17 149 Anticipated shortfall in income collected at Nant Y Ci Mart 157
Other -30 G117
Grand Total -18 288




EXECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

Department for Communities
Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019

Oct 19 Aug 19
Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted
Net non- Net non- Variance for Variance for
Division Expenditure Income controllable Net Expenditure Income controllable Net Year Year
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Adult Services
Older People 57,654 -24,194 2,658 36,117 58,066 -23,822 2,657 36,901 784 675
Physical Disabilities 7,887 -1,751 204 6,340 8,522 -2,266 204 6,460 120 52
Learning Disabilities 38,850 -9,541 1,294 30,603 38,336 -9,002 1,294 30,628 25 39
Mental Health 9,513 -3,803 237 5,947 9,185 -3,443 237 5,979 32 37
Support 6,996 -4,865 1,002 3,133 7,019 -4,862 1,002 3,158 26 12
Homes & Safer Communities
Public Protection 3,170 -974 588 2,784 3,036 -847 588 2,777 -7 -70
Council Fund Housing 9,098 -7,964 243 1,377 9,342 -8,205 243 1,380 4 64
Leisure & Recreation
Leisure & Recreation 15,735 -8,286 4,559 12,008 15,446 -7,998 4,559 12,008 -0 0
GRAND TOTAL 148,903 -61,379 10,785 98,309 148,952 -60,445 10,784 99,291 982 811

T9 uarepny




Department for Communities - Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019

Main Variances
ECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

couglepny

Working Budget Forecasted Oct 19 Aug 19
Y _ Y _ 53 53
3 2 3 a <23 <% g
PP (2]
Division S__ g S__ g g § § Notes g § §
5 5 g2 El
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Adult Services
Older People
Additional cost due to higher dependency levels/increased occupancy rates/use of
agency staff to meet statutory duty. Review currently being undertaken in relation to
Older People - LA Homes 7,620 -4,830 7,834 -4,816 228 Residential Care future staffing levels 208
Performance data shows increased demographic pressure on demand in line with
national information that shows a year on year increase in Older People of 3.4%pa.
Older People - Private/ Vol Homes 22,699 13,064 23,038 113.190 213 Preventative work continues to be reviewed to mitigate the effects of this. 179
Older People - Extra Care 759 0 825 0 65 Cwm Aur contract - savings proposals in previous years only partially delivered 61
Efficiency issues around sickness rates/hours delivered impacting on additional
Older People - LA Home Care 7236 0 7331 0 95 spend. Balance between continuity of care and increased efficiency being worked on 6
There has been a significant increase in demand for domiciliary care that has only
been partly offset by a fall in residential care placements. There is significant
departmental work to monitor and manage demand by audit assessment practice
and by continuing to promote independent living through Integrated Care Fund
initiatives such as Releasing Time to Care resulting in lower demand eg for double
handed care packages. We are currently reviewing whether this initiative requires
. additional resources to yield the necessary financial savings
Older People - Private Home Care 8338| 2473 8338| 2,331 142 Y y 9 245
Physical Disabilities
Vacancies within the Occupational Therapy Team: 1FTE Senior Practitioner; 1.5FTE
Phys Dis - Commissioning & OT Occupational Therapy Assistant; 1FTE Occupational Therapist offset by payments
Services 613 -108 525 -88 -68 for Rotational Occupation Therapy from Hywel Dda -61
Increase in take up of DP related to right of service user to request as alternative to
Phys Dis - Direct Payments 2,685 -566 2,835 -566 150 regulated provision 147
Learning Disabilities
Overspend on staffing in Coleshill Day Centre £30k due to complexity of clients.
Proposal 'Collaboration with social enterprise for craft / Reprovision of a day centre /
Learn Dis - Employment & Training 1,305 -203 1,298 -124 72 transport' is likely to be deliver full year savings in 2020-2021 136




EXECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

Department for Communities - Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019
Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted Oct 19 Aug 19
o B [ _ 5T s 3
H 3 H a <3 ® <3 ®
P (2]
Division % % % % g § % Notes g § %
o8 =8
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Increase in take up of DP related to right of service user to request as alternative to
Learn Dis - Direct Payments 3,548 -537 3,604 -537 56 regulated provision 40
Other Variances - Adult Services 31 -144
Homes & Safer Communities
Public Protection
PP Business Support unit 149 0 128 0 -22 Underspend due to vacant post -part year
Public Health 276 -14 263 -14 -13 Underspend due to maternity leave
Air Pollution 124 -35 94 -18 -13 Underspend due to vacant post -part year
Animal Welfare 80 -82 64 -51 14 Underachievement of licences income
Underachievement of fees income and overspend on private sector contracted
Dog Wardens 96 -28 114 -9 36 services
Licensing 341 -324 339 -339 -17 Overachiement of income target
Food Safety & Communicable
Diseases 481 -38 443 -38 -38 Underspend due to two vacant post - part year
Fair Trading 143 -64 137 -3 55 Underachievement of fees income
Other Public Protection 1,479 -390 1,454 -375 -10
Other Variances - Public Protection 0
Council Fund Housing
Independent Living and Affordable
Homes 104 -45 80 -45 -24 underspends on supplies and services
Social Lettings Agency 782 -786 686 -672 19 underachievement of income on housing benefits
Other Council Fund Housing 8,212 -7,134 8,576 -7,489 9
Other Variances - Council Fund Housing 0

€9 usjepn]




ECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

Department for Communities - Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019
Main Variances

v ugfepnL

Working Budget Forecasted Oct 19 Aug 19
m m <
Division % § % § g § § Notes g § §
g ) c @ = (‘;D: <) g
) ) = =
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Leisure & Recreation
Millenium Coastal Park 221 -105 226 -137 -27 One off Compensation income from Welsh Water -23
Pendine Outdoor Education Centre 500 -333 423 -299 -43 Forecast reduction in Instructor hours to budget based on confirmed bookings 5
Carmarthen Leisure Centre 1,567 -1,606 1,556 -1,538 57 Forecasting lower sales volumes in income to budget 38
St Clears Leisure Centre 141 -41 155 -43 12 Design fee costs to support Capital funding bid not budgetted -3
Amman Valley Leisure Centre 846 -707 831 -745 -52 Forecasting higher sales volumes in income to budget -55
Sport & Leisure General 877 -58 884 -51 14 Free swim grant only approved for 6 months £14k 14
Operational staffing and Agency costs linked to long term sickness and
implementation of restructure. This variance is likely to reduce once fully
Outdoor Recreation - Staffing costs 229 0 275 0 45 implemented 16
Llyn Lech Owain Country Park 85 -33 84 -52 -22 Forecasting higher income to budget due to sale of wood from planned Tree Felling -20
Museums General 175 0 193 0 18 Unable to achieve vacancy factor 24
Arts General 39 0 5 0 -34 Vacant post being held pending Service review -35
Forecast shortfall in income to budget in this newly established in-house catering
St Clears Craft Centre 151 -88 143 -56 24 facility 16
Laugharne Boathouse 147 -109 168 -116 15 Forecast overspend in casual Customer Service Assistant posts 11
Oriel Myrddin CCC 108 0 118 0 10 Backdated NNDR costs £6k and Internal Design fees £4k supporting ACW grant bid 0
Leisure Management 400 0 360 0 -40 Vacant posts being held pending Service review -29
Other Variance - Leisure & Recreation 22 42
Grand Total 982 811




EXECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

Corporate Services Department
Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019

Oct 19 Aug 19
Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted
Net non- Net non- Variance for Variance for

Division Expenditure Income controllable Net Expenditure Income controllable Net Year Year

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial Services 4,504 -2,083 -2,360 61 4,293 -2,133 -2,360 -200 -261 -200
Revenues & Financial Compliance 4,842 -1,711 -2,129 1,002 4,574 -1,660 -2,129 786 -216 -192
Other Services 69,281 -47,297 3,272 25,257 72,497 -50,721 3,272 25,048 -209 -186
GRAND TOTAL 78,627 -51,091 -1,216 26,320 81,364 -54,513 -1,216 25,634 -686 -579

G9 usjepnL




ECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

Corporate Services Department - Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019
Main Variances

99 uplepn L

Working Budget Forecasted Oct 19 Aug 19
Y _ Y _ 53 5%
H 3 H a <3 ® <3 ®
P (2]
Division S__ g S__ g g § § Notes g § §
5 5 g2 El
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial Services
Additional £35k income from arrangement to act as S151 officer for Mid and West
Chief Officer 348 -61 335 -96 -48 Wales Fire along with £13k savings on supplies and services -25
Accountancy 1,721 -430 1,546 -423 -168 Number of vacant posts currently in the section, 2 currently out to advert -150
Treasury and Pension Investment
Section 251 -178 225 -178 -27 Vacant Post currently being advertised -19
Reduction in expenditure on supplies and services along with a temporary vacant
Payments 519 -74 493 -71 -22 post during the year. -6
Revenues & Financial Compliance
£60k - vacant Procurement manager post - will be advertised shortly. Net £ 11k -
Procurement 529 -33 458 -33 -71 short-term vacancies and amendments to working patterns. -69
Audit 596 -19 581 -19 -15 A few posts temporarily vacant during year -2
Local Taxation 927 -735 896 -735 -31 A few posts temporarily vacant during year 8
Number of vacant posts during the year. Majority of officers also currently on the
Housing Benefits Admin 1,637 -751 1,525 -752 -113 lowest points of their grade. -131
Other Services
Audit Fees 310 -90 291 -88 -17 A proportion of audit fees chargeable directly to grants -17
Miscellaneous Services 5,905 -117 6,400 -801 -190 Reduction in pre LGR pension costs -160
Other Variances 16 -9
Grand Total -686 -579




EXECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

Department for Education & Children
Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019

Oct 19 Aug 19
Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted
Net non- Net non- Variance for Variance for

Division Expenditure Income controllable Net Expenditure Income controllable Net Year Year

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Schools Delegated Budgets 118,537 -10,321 0 108,216 121,537 -10,321 0 111,216 3,000 3,001
Director & Strategic Management 1,511 0 -94 1,417 1,483 0 -94 1,389 -28 -21
Education Services Division 9,086 -1,858 20,440 27,668 10,040 -1,845 20,440 28,635 967 820
Access to Education 8,743 -5,948 2,167 4,962 8,748 -5,800 2,167 5,115 153 150
School Improvement 3,359 -1,388 463 2,434 3,519 -1,560 463 2,423 -11 -2
Curriculum & Wellbeing 6,045 -4,530 567 2,083 6,521 -4,884 567 2,204 122 113
Children's Services 22,741 -5,712 2,563 19,592 24,425 -7,516 2,563 19,472 -120 -0
TOTAL excluding schools 51,486 -19,436 26,106 58,156 54,737 -21,605 26,106 59,238 1,082 1,059
GRAND TOTAL 170,023 -29,757 26,106 166,372 176,274 -31,925 26,106 170,454 4,082 4,060

/9 usjepn




Department for Education & Children - Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019

Main Variances
ECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

g9 uplepnL

Working Budget Forecasted Oct 19 Aug 19
Y _ Y _ 53 5%
H 3 ? 3 <3 g <pa
PP (2]
Division S__ g S__ g g § § Notes g § §
— o — o) . — . —
5 5 g2 El
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Schools Delegated Budgets
gzgirgasr;h;ccﬁols giggg ggzs gg‘;gg ggzs 142188 Based on schools' working budgets received for 2019/20. Deficit budget iigg
- : — . — : submissions are included subject to approval of recovery plans by LA :
Special Schools 3,910 26 4310 26 200 ) PP y plans by 200
Director & Strategic Management
Part year vacant posts - 1 remaining vacant post should be filled from January
Business Support 387 0 359 0 -28 onwards -17
Education Services Division
School Expenditure not currently
delegated 101 0 152 2 53 Closing balances from 2 primary schools closed April 2019 59
Forecast based on business cases approved to date. Schools are supported and
School Redundancy & EVR 2,013 0 2,098 0 86 challenged on staffing structure proposals 121
Forecast based on existing known commitments. Demand for Teaching Assistant
support has increased. A reduction in the number of pupils from other counties has
Special Educational Needs 3,079 -1,548 3,582 -1,375 676 resulted in a reduction in the level of income. 505
Education Other Than At School Increasing demand from schools for alternative provision £134k and an increase in
(EQOTAS) 2,001 -283 2,173 -288 166 home tuition £32k 172
Access to Education
School Admissions 253 0 224 0 -29 Part year staff vacancies following re-structure of the section -10
School transport recharges from school reorganisations £22k; Premises costs
School Modernisation 108 -1 261 -48 105 relating to closed schools £83k 83
Budget pressures across the service especially sickness cover, kitchens'
School Meals & Primary Free maintenance and food price increases. A strategic review of meal provision is on-
Breakfast Services 8,382 -5,947 8,264 -5,752 77 going to identify service efficiencies 77




Department for Education & Children - Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019
Main Variances

EXECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

Working Budget Forecasted Oct 19 Aug 19
Y _ Y _ 53 53
3 a 3 a <53 <3
PP (2]
Division S__ g S__ g g § § Notes g § §
— o — o) . — . —
5 5 g2 El
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Curriculum and Wellbeing
Slow progress with staff restructuring, which has been affected by a delay in the
ongoing redundancy process and therefore an increased staffing forecast from the
Music Services for Schools 871 -770 1,178 -911 166 previous report to year end 134
Youth Offending & Prevention Service 1,972 -1,112 2,021 -1,195 -34 Maximisation of grants to release core budget -31
Children's Services
Commissioning and Social Work 6,790 -79 6,916 -148 58 Increased number of legal cases attracting significant costs 79
Corporate Parenting & Leaving Care 975 0 1,165 -157 33 Increased Lodging costs offset by St David's Day and ICF grants. 0
Part year vacant posts and maximisation of grants to release core budget (£55k),
Also, more cost effective recruitment of Foster Carers and tight controls in place on
Fostering Services & Support 3,869 0 3,964 -188 -93 additional miscellaneous payments made to Foster Carers (£38Kk) -109
Hywel Dda Health Board disputing partnership arrangement, which could affect the
level of their contribution. Senior officers are currently in negotiations with the Health
Garreglwyd Residential Unit 586 -166 665 -168 78 Board to resolve this 80
Increased salary costs at Llys Caradog Respite Centre - emergency placement over
the summer and generally increased support needed for young people with complex
Residential and Respite Units 961 0 984 0 24 needs who are now being referred to service 1
Additional in year grants awarded from Welsh Government. Existing staff have been
Childcare 484 -187 459 -188 -26 utilised to work on the grants which has released core funding -0
Additional in year grants awarded from Welsh Government. Existing staff have been
Families First Grant 1,260 -1,056 1,246 -1,057 -15 utilised to work on the grants which has released core funding -1
Part year vacant posts following restructure and setting up of new Step Up Step
Family Aide Services 168 0 279 -188 -76 Down Family Intervention Team. 1
Other Family Services incl Young External income received from other Local Authorities as part of regional REFLECT
Carers and ASD 591 -362 602 -448 -75 project, which has released core budget 0
LSchool Safeguarding & Attendance 221 0 390 -191 -21 Part year vacant posts following service restructure -12
Mther Variances -41 -73
(D
[Orand Total 4,082 4,060
(@)

O



EXECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

Environment Department

Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019

0/ usjepny

Oct 19 Aug 19

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted Forecasted
Net non- Net non- Variance for Variance for

Division Expenditure Income controllable Net Expenditure Income controllable Net Year Year

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Buisness Support & Performance 15 -96 146 65 -11 -102 146 34 -31 -43
Waste & Environmental Services 24,294 -4,533 1,264 21,025 24,225 -4,349 1,264 21,140 115 292
Highways & Transportation 58,223 -38,314 9,598 29,507 61,450 -41,382 9,598 29,665 158 251
Property 36,160 -34,105 606 2,662 44,129 -42,048 606 2,687 25 17
Planning 4,165 -2,354 284 2,094 4,471 -2,254 284 2,501 407 463
GRAND TOTAL 122,857 -79,402 11,898 55,353 134,265 -90,135 11,898 56,028 675 980




EXECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

Environment Department - Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted Oct 19 Aug 19
Division % 3 % 3 g'f % § Notes § % §
= 3 = 3 s o 0 = o »
5 ° 5 ° 58 58
@ @ = =
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Business Support & Performance
Posts budgeted at top of scale but majority are not at the top of scale yet; a few
Business Support -159 -36 -207 -36 -48 temporary vacant posts estimated during the year. -56
Departmental - Core 58 0 73 0 15 Contribution towards the Health and wellbeing co-ordinators 11
Waste & Environmental Services
Anticipated income not expected to materialise based on current income trends -
SAB - Sustainable Drainage approval Dependent on number of submissions and market buoyancy of development
Body Unit 114 -110 113 -38 70 projects 60
Capital repayment element deducted from Danfo final quarter cost due to end of
Public Conveniences 571 -12 485 -9 -83 contract term. New contract will be cleansing & management only. -23
The service cost comprises plant and resource and of course tipping charges for
disposal of waste we collect. The current overspend reflects the current resource
levels and increased cost of disposal of collected waste. In order to address the
budget position it will mean reviewing the service. This work is underway but will not
Cleansing Service 2,397 -115 2,456 -111 63 be complete before the end of the financial year. 59
The green waste collection service is not yet self-financing. We did not anticipate to
break even this financial year, as per the original business plan, but we are on track
with growing the service as anticipated, with a view to being break even in future
years. A third vehicle has now been introduced to cater for potential additional
Green Waste Collection 496 -336 428 -212 56 customers. 56
Highways & Transportation
Transport Strategic Planning 351 0 333 0 -18 The net effect of an increase in consultants fees as a result of temporary vacancies. -1
The overspend is mainly due to an increase in the number of Additional Learning
Needs pupils transported to Special schools. In addition a number of recent appeals
have been successful as well as increased contractor costs, diminishing market
School Transport 10,984 -1,102 11,444 -1,264 297 supply and increased minimum wage. 214
Net increased income of £90k from Traffic Regulation Orders; salary savings of £40k
Traffic Management 529 -40 591 -232 -130 on 2 posts which are both currently out for recruitment. 0
Reduction in income due to temporary loss of spaces at St Peter's Car Park and a
—I general reduction in Parking Fees income. Reduction in Penalty Charge Notices
- income due to vacant Civil Enforcement Officers posts which are currently being
a‘ar Parks 2,187 -3,228 1,733 -2,682 92 recruited. 65
Mfant y Ci Park & Ride 79 -32 104 -38 20 Increased maintenance costs 21
ur of Britain - Environment 0 0 25 0 25 Cost of Womens tour of Britain in June 2019 -0
-]
~

=




Environment Department - Budget Monitoring - as at 31st October 2019

Main Variances
ECUTIVE BOARD 20th JANUARY 2020

cluyepn]

Working Budget Forecasted Oct 19 Aug 19
Y _ @ _ 53 53
3 3 3 3 <53 <53
(e}
Division 2 o 2 o 23D Notes 228
= 3 = 3 s o 0 = o »n
c @ c @ - @ - @
o o S Shy-%
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Vacant post - Road Safety Manager which is currently being recruited and also a
recent temporary vacancy has arisen within the Road Safety Unit. A proportion of
Road Safety 178 0 152 -1 -26 staff time is recharged to the Road Safety Revenue Grant. -0
The school crossing patrols section has reviewed all patrols to identify where there is
no requirement to provide them according to the National Safety criteria. Vacancies
that arise in the sites that do not require school crossing patrols will not be filled as
School Crossing Patrols 116 0 135 0 18 and when they become vacant. 18
vacant posts - Principle Engineer on hold until Apr 2020 and Structures Engineer
Bridge Maintenance 781 0 745 -5 -41 vacant for part year hoping to fill by Jan 2020 -0
Street Works and Highway Adoptions 416 -357 410 -433 -82 Additional income from highway adoption agreements -23
Property
Facilities Management - Corporate
Buildings 358 0 391 0 32 Overspend due to cover sickness absence 15
Planning
Building Control - Other 181 -5 163 0 -12 Vacant posts not expected to fill until Apr '20 at the earliest 1
Overspend due to projected non-achievement of income - no longer carrying out
Policy-Development Planning 567 0 577 -0 10 consultancy work for other Depts. etc. 12
WG set planning fees, but across Wales there is recognition that full cost recovery of
planning services will not be achieved from planning fees alone. Most LPAs only
cover on average 60% of their costs of delivering the development management
service through fees, and the last increase in fees was in 2015. WG expect that at
least part of the Development Management function should be met by Local
Authorities themselves — to encourage development to come forward. Currently
Carmarthenshire’s Development Management section is budgeted to fund 78% of its
costs through fees generated, this is currently being reviewed. WG have committed
Development Management 1,536 -1,274 1,494 -786 446 to review fees, but there is no known timetable for this workstream. 483
Tywi Centre 34 -34 77 -98 -21 Projected surplus being generated from running training courses at the Tywi Centre -13
Other Variances | -8 80
Grand Total | 675 980




APPENDIX B

Housing Revenue Account - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2019

- Oct 19 Aug 19
o3 2 < o< 9
& = 8 SzE €S20
® > 0 o 2o Notes <2
o
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Expenditure
Repairs & Maintenance
Responsive 1,802 1,721 -81 50
Minor Works 3,022 3,022 0 0
\Slglr(\j/iscing ig;? igié 13: Anticipgteq expe_nt_jiture based on profiled spend to date. Includes breakdown lg
- costs within servicing
Drains & Sewers 139 130 -9 =il
Grounds 749 749 0 0
Unadopted Roads 105 105 0 0
Supervision & Management
Employee 4,614 4,614 0 47
Premises 1,433 1,433 -0 6
Transport 64 55 -9 -10
Supplies 819 819 -0 -25
Recharges 2,253 2,252 -1 0
Provision for Bad Debt 504 490 -14 -0
Capital Financing Cost 14,542 14,209 -333 Forecast reduction in interest rate applicable -212
Central Support Charges 1,652 1,652 0 0
Total Expenditure 36,761 36,488 -273 -134

€/l usjepny



_|
CCL Housing Revenue Account - Budget Monitoring as at 31st October 2019
- - Oct 19 Aug 19
D ) By
») E g © < 5 E )
&z 2 szo =g
~ @ > @ 28 Notes <9 o
N e 2 -3 832
@ = o 8
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income
Rents -41,199 [ -41,090 108 Underachievement of rental income due to higher void loss than budgeted 189
Based on Financial statements, week 31 data. Overachievement of service
Service Charges -706 -754 -48 charges Income 1
Supporting People -79 -79 0 0
Interest on Cash Balances -102 -102 0 0
Grants -245 -245 0 0
Insurance 0 -171 -171 Settlement of R&M insurance claims -183
Underachievement of income from Commission on Sales relating to the
Other Income -531 -480 51 collection of water rates and Fees recoverable 93
Total Income -42,862 | -42,922 -60 101
Net Expenditure -6,101 -6,434 -333 -32
HRA Reserve £'000
Balance b/f 1/4/19 14,314
Budgeted movement in year 6,101
Variance for the year 333
Balance c/f 31/3/20 20,748

APPENDIX B



Eitem Rhif 9

BWRDD GWEITHREDOL
Y DYDDIAD 20/01/2020

Diweddaru Rhaglen Gyfalaf 2019-20
Y Pwrpas: | adrodd y amrywiant cyllidebol yn y rhaglen gyfalaf.

YR ARGYMHELLION / PENDERFYNIADAU ALLWEDDOL SYDD EU
HANGEN:

| dderbyn yr adroddiad diweddaraf ar y rhaglen gyfalaf.

Y RHESYMAU:

| ddarparu’r newyddion ynglyn a sefyllfa gyllideb ddiweddaraf y rhaglen gyfalaf 2019/20, ar
31ain Hydref 20109.

Ymgynghorwyd &'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol - Amherthnasol

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O’'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY’N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Cyng. David Jenkins

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol

Enw Cyfarwyddwry Swydd: Rhif ffon: 01267 224120
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol: Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cyfeiriad E-bost:

Chris Moore Corfforaethol CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk
Awdur yr Adroddiad:

Chris Moore

o Sir Gar A EICH CYNéorRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) .
> YOUR counciLdoitonline Tudalen 75

Q, ===\ g
%ty Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Executive Board
20" January 2020

This report provides an update on the Capital programme spend against budget for 2019/20
as at the 31% October 2019.

Appendix A which is shown departmentally, shows a forecasted net spend of £63,753k
compared with a working net budget of £64,304k giving a -£551k variance.

The net budget has been re-profiled by £4.848m from 2019/20 to future years to take account

of updated spend profile information and the budget slippage from 2018/19 is also included
within the attached figures.

There is also an Education and CS budget re-profiling exercise currently being undertaken to
reflect the progress of schemes within the 5 year capital programme on the MEP programme.

Appendix B details the main variances within each department.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES
o Sir Gar A EICH CYNéorRarleinamdani
o Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire YOur counciLdoitonline
Tudalen 76 Dy o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: C.Moore Director of Corporate Services

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

NONE NONE YES NONE NONE NONE YES
Finance

The capital programme shows an in year variance of -£551m against the 2019/20 approved
budget.

Physical Assets
The capital programme will have an impact on the physical assets of the Authority.

CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: C. Moore Director of Corporate Services

1. Scrutiny Committee

Relevant Scrutiny Committees will be consulted.

2.Local Member(s) N/A

3.Community / Town Council N/A

4.Relevant Partners N/A

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THERE ARE NONE

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
2019-20 Capital Corporate Services Dept, County Hall, Carmarthen
Programme
o Sir Gar A EICH CYNéorRarleinamdani
o Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
LB Your counciLdoitonline
Dy o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales Tudalen 77



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Appendix A

Capital Programme 2019/20

Capital Budget Monitoring - Report for October 2019

Working Budget

Forecasted

Expenditure

Income

Net

Expenditure

Income

Net

Variance for

, , , , , , Year £000

DEPARTMENT £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

COMMUNITIES

- Public Housing 31,267 -6,238 25,029 29,776 -6,478 23,298 -1,731
- Private Housing 2,367 -396 1,971 2,397 -396 2,001 30
- Social Care 626 -211 415 630 -211 419 4
- Leisure 5,915 -129 5,786 5,898 -129 5,769 -17
ENVIRONMENT 15,943 -7,307 8,636 16,534 -7,277 9,257 621
EDUCATION & CHILDREN 13,556 -5,478 8,078 12,272 -3,668 8,604 526
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 2,545 -41 2,504 2,571 -41 2,530 26
REGENERATION 16,410 -4,525 11,885 16,050 -4,175 11,875 -10
TOTAL 88,629 -24,325 64,304 86,128 -22,375 63,753 -551

6/, usjfepnyt




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Appendix B

Capital Programme 2019/20

Capital Budget Monitoring - Report for October 2019 - Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted <
<o
3 . 4 .
o2 | 23 | 2z | 22 | 23 | 2z w3 Comment
g2 | 83 | 8% | 82 | 83 | &® g5
= ] c ] =
DEPARTMENT/SCHEMES © @
COMMUNITIES
- Public Housing 31,267 -6,238 25,029 29,776 -6,478 23,298 -1,731
Sewerage Treatment Works Upgrading 184 0 184 90 90 -94| |The treatment works refurbishment schemes are with Highways and
Transport Engineers to develop detailed programme and estimated
costs. Design fees only in 2019/20, with works to start in 2020/21.
Sheltered Housing Investment 1,999 0 1,999 1,492 0 1,492 -507| |The works at one complex is not commencing until January 2020, with
the majority of expenditure falling in 2020-21.
Rendering and External Works 1,970 0 1,970 1,772 0 1,772 -198| |Rendering and wall tie renewal at one site not commencing until the fire
safety works are completed.
Stock Condition Survey 2019/20 - County Wide 150 0 150 28 0 28 -122| |Survey to be undertaken in-house and will commence in 2020/21.
Station Road / Tyisha Masterplan 1,000 0 1,000 555 0 555 -445] |Significant preparation work being undertaken in terms of the major
regeneration works planned. Fully costed plans to be developed with
strategic partner(s) in early part of 2020 that will confirm detailed financial
profile for overall development.
Assisted Living Schemes 300 0 300 25 0 25 -275| |Slight delay in development of one supported housing scheme in Llanelli
area.
Other Projects with Minor Variances 25,664 -6,238 19,426 25,814 -6,478 19,336 -90
- Private Housing 2,367 -396 1,971 2,397 -396 2,001 30| |No Major Variances.
- Social Care 626 -211 415 630 -211 419 4] |No Major Variances.
- Leisure 5,915 -129 5,786 5,898 -129 5,769 -17] |No Major Variances.
ENVIRONMENT 15,943 -7,307 8,636 16,534 -7,277 9,257 621
Ammanford Highway Infrastructure 112 0 112 525 0 525 413] |Unexpected additional costs on Wind Street/Tirydail Lane Junction,
exploring various options for funding by means of external income.
Carmarthen Western Link Road 251 0 251 448 0 448 197] |To be funded from future S106 receipts.
Other Projects with Minor Variances 15,580 -7,307 8,273 15,561 -7,277 8,284 11
EDUCATION & CHILDREN 13,556 -5,478 8,078 12,272 -3,668 8,604 526
MEP External Funding Income 0 -3,086 -3,086 0 -2,851 -2,851 235] |Income dependent on which schemes progress. Budget to be reprofiled.
Dinefwr Project - Dyffryn Aman 20 0 20 70 0 70 50] |Additional internal works and groundworks on site.
Carmarthen West New School 0 0 0 50 0 50 50| |Expenditure to be funded from future S106 income.
—tiandybie CP 0 0 0 75 0 75 75| |Project design currently in progress. Re-profile of MEP programme
c required.
erngwyn School Refurbishment 0 0 0 75 0 75 75| |Project design currently in progress. Re-profile of MEP programme
Q required.
(Mther Projects with Minor Variances 13,536 -2,392 11,144 12,002 -817 11,185 41
CHIE'ﬁEXECUTIVE 2,545 -41 2,504 2,571 -41 2,530 26] |No Major Variances.
=
REGENERATION 16,410 -4,525 11,885 16,050 -4,175 11,875 -10] |No Major Variances.
TOTAL 88,629] -24,325 64,304 86,128] -22,375 63,753 -551




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 10

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL
20 IONAWR, 2020

PWNC:
YSTYRIED GWRTHWYNEBIADAU | ORCHYMYN CYDGYFNERTHU SIR
GAERFYRDDIN (MANNAU PARCIO ODDI AR Y STRYD) (AMRYWIOL
FEYSYDD PARCIO, SIR GAERFYRDDIN) (AMRYWIAD RHIF 4)

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:

Bod y Bwrdd Gweithredol yn:

i.  Penderfynu ar y gwrthwynebiadau a ddaeth i law mewn perthynas a'r meysydd parcio a
nodir ym mharagraff 1 (i) o'r Crynodeb o'r Adroddiad isod.

ii.  Ac eithrio'r meysydd parcio y cyfeirir atynt ym mharagraffau 3.4.1, 3.7.1a 3.8.1yny
Crynodeb o'r Adroddiad, penderfynu gweithredu'r cynigion fel y'u disgrifir yn y gorchymyn
drafft y manylir arno yn Atodiad 1 mewn perthynas &'r meysydd parcio sy'n weddill a nodir
ym mharagraffau 1 (i) a (ii) o'r Crynodeb o'r Adroddiad.

Y Rhesymau:

- Bydd cyflwyno'r gorchymyn yn gwella diogelwch ac yn hwyluso parcio cerbydau yn'y
lleoliadau hyn mewn modd trefnus.

- Mae'r gwrthwynebiadau naill ai wedi'u derbyn, gyda lleoedd parcio wedi'u dileu, neu
wedi'u lliniaru drwy sicrhau bod rhai pwyntiau mynediad am ddim i lwybr Parc Arfordirol y
Mileniwm yn parhau i fodoli, ynghyd & thocyn tymhorol sy'n caniatau i ddefnyddwyr
rheolaidd barcio am gyn lleied ag 11c y dydd.

Angen ymgynghori a’r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol: NAC OES

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad: OES - 20 lonawr, 2020
Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad: NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:
Y Cynghorydd P.H. Griffiths (Diwylliant, Chwaraeon a Thwristiaeth)
Y Cynghorydd H. Evans (Amgylchedd)

wor Sir GACR EICH CYN6OorRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . ]
o <=4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
ity Cout www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 83



Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Yr Amgylchedd
Enw Penaethiaid y Gwasanaeth:
Stephen G. Pilliner

lan Jones

Awduron yr Adroddiad:
Richard Waters

Neil Thomas

Swyddi

Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Thrafnidiaeth

Pennaeth Hamdden

Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd
a Thrafnidiaeth

Uwch-reolwr Hamdden Awyr
Agored

Rhif Ffén: / Cyfeiriad e-bost:
01267 228150
SGPilliner@sirgar.gov.uk
01267 228309

IJones@sirgar.gov.uk
01267 228825
RWaters@sirgar.gov.uk

01554 742361
neilgthomas@sirgar.gov.uk

PN
omsor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

Tudalen 84

Q, 222N
gy con®

EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani

www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

YOUR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



mailto:SGPilliner@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:IJones@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:neilgthomas@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD

20™ JANUARY, 2020

SUBJECT:
CONSIDERATION OF OBJECTIONS TO THE COUNTY OF
CARMARTHENSHIRE (OFF-STREET PARKING PLACES) (VARIOUS CAR
PARKS, CARMARTHENSHIRE) CONSOLIDATION (VARIATION NO. 4) ORDER

1. Purpose

It should be noted that the following places were considered by the EBM for Environment on the
10" May 2019, with a decision made to approve the proposed orders at these locations:

Parc Myrddin North, Carmarthen (plan 1, appendix 2)
Parc Myrddin Registrars, Carmarthen (planl)

Selwyn Samuel, Llanelli (plan 10)

Dafen Inn Row, Llanelli (plan 11b)

This report is to determine objections received to the off-street car parking order proposed at the
following leisure locations within Carmarthenshire and whether to implement the same:

(i) Objections received for proposals at:

a) Burry Port Harbour (plan 6 West car park; plan 7 East car park);
b) Woodlands, Burry Port (plan 5);

c) Shoreline, Burry Port (plan 4);

d) Festival Fields, Llanelli (plan 8);

e) Rotary Way, outside Pembrey Country Park (plan 2);

f)  Mynydd Mawr, Woodlands, Tumble (plan 14);

g) Mynydd Mawr Woodlands, Cefneithin (plan 15)

h) North Dock, Llanelli (plan 9)

(i) No objections received to the following, where amendments to existing orders are proposed
in the form of charging hours (all now applicable for 24 hr charging), changes to maximum
waiting periods; or extending existing order areas. This is to help manage overnight parking
at such sites

a) Sandy Water Park, Llanelli (plan 16);

b) Llyn Llech Owain (plan 12) — changed from 10 to 8 hrs max stay;

c) Pendine (plan 13) — changed from 10 to 8 hours max stay (N.B. this car park will be the
subject of a subsequent parking order as part of the Pendine Attractor development
which will reconfigure the parking area and potentially operate as an ANPR facility,
however, this current proposal provides for enforcement of max staying period as per
current plan during this interim period);

d) Bynea (plan 11).

wor Sir GACR EICH CYN6OorRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . ]
o <=4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
ity Cout www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 85



(ii1) Full details of the proposed or amended restrictions relating to the car parks subject to this
report are listed in Appendix 1 hereto with locations illustrated on the plans in Appendix 2.
The purpose of the proposed order is to improve safety and aid the orderly parking of
vehicles at these locations, where difficulties have been noted previously in terms of
disorderly parking, causing potential risk to users, staff and emergency services. The
proposals also help protect the environment where disorderly parking takes place on
ecologically sensitive verges and encourages the use of more sustainable access routes
such as cycle networks, all of which aligns with the Well-being of Future Generations Act.

2. Consultation
The proposals are detailed in the public notice which was published on the 27" February
2019 with a closing date of 22" March 2019, a copy of which appears in Appendix 1.

3. Objections and comments

3.1. During the consultation period the Council’s Head of Administration and Law received one
hundred and seventy (170) objections, including a petition of fifty-five (55) names against the
advertised proposals. These are summarised with comments in Appendix 4.

3.1.1 The draft Legal Order advertised indicated a £40 charge for a Season Ticket however this
has been set at £37.50, as part of the Leisure Charging Digest, with the agreement of the
Executive Board Member for Culture, Sport and Tourism.

3.2 A summary of the objections and the rationale for recommended decisions are explained
below. All the objections apply to proposed new parking orders, apart from Burry Port Harbour,
which is an amendment to the maximum waiting period on an existing order. There is clear
evidence of comments and objections being fully acknowledged and considered as part of this
process, with remedial actions, or in some instances the withdrawal of the proposed order at
certain sites, evident from the recommendations put forward.

3.3 Appendix 3 is the equalities impact assessment underpinning this proposal, which also
provides mitigation and rationale for many of the objections raised.

3.2.1. Burry Port harbour car parks (West and East)

3.2.1.1. The objectors state that the proposals will affect tourism in the area, as people will not
be able to afford to park, and that the car park should remain free. They also state that there will
be a displacement of vehicles should the charges be introduced, as well as affecting senior
citizens with disabilities - a discounted annual pass should be available if the charges are
introduced.

3.2.1.2. Recommendation: Implement the proposals as described in Appendix 1 (West car
park to change from 4 to 8 hours max waiting period; East car park — extend parking order zone
to create additional parking). There are already orders in place (2014) to charge for both
existing West and East car park. An annual pass is available at £37.50 per annum (less than 11p
per day) as part of the proposal. Limited free parking is available along the nearby highway
network, and will also remain at Shoreline car park (3.4.1).

wor Sir GACR EICH CYN6OorRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire

Tudalen 86

4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
ity Cout www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



3.3.1 Woodlands car park, Burry Port

3.3.1.1 The objectors are of the opinion that this is the last car park you can use for free in the
area and that the charges will have an impact on the community. The proposals will reduce the
wellbeing of the local community and is a step backwards in terms of the Council’s Wellbeing of
Future Generations agenda.

3.3.1.2 Recommendation: Implement the proposals as described in Appendix 1 — adding
order to an existing unmanaged parking place. Limited free parking is also available on the local
highway network and will also remain at Shoreline car park (3.4.1) for people to access the
Millennium Coastal path.

3.4.1 Shoreline car park, Pembrey

3.4.1.1 The objectors state that the car park should be kept free to encourage healthy living and
for free access to the coastal path.

3.4.1.2 Recommendation: Remove proposal from the parking order and monitor impact.
3.5.1 Festival Fields, Llanelli

3.5.1.1 Objectors state that the charges are detrimental to health and wellbeing and would have
a disproportionate effect on disabled users due to barriers on pavement near entrance.

3.5.1.2 Recommendation: Implement the proposals as described in Appendix 1 - adding order
to an existing unmanaged parking place. Any physical barriers will be removed or remodelled to
ensure equal access for disabled users as part of this proposal. An annual pass is available at
£37.50 per annum (less than 11p per day) as part of the proposals. Limited free parking is also
available on the local highway network.

3.6.1 Rotary Way car park, Pembrey Country Park

3.6.1.1 The objectors state that the proposals discourage the use of the coastal path, and that
the charges will be diminished by the cost of installation, collection of fees and enforcement. No
provision for horse riders. Charges are a concern for dog walkers and to

local people on low income. Financial burden to students, social aspects as well as health.

3.6.1.2 Recommendation: Implement the proposals as described in Appendix 1 - adding order
to an existing unmanaged parking place. An annual pass is available at £37.50 per annum (less
than 11p per day) as part of the proposals. There are proposals in place to introduce a parking
bay for horse boxes opposite the entrance to the car park as part of this proposal. Free parking
exists at Penybedd Woods at the other end of Factory Road, as well as numerous other access
points along the coastal path for dog walkers and the public alike.

3.7.1 Woodlands car park, Mynydd Mawr, Tumble

3.7.1.1 Objectors state that there are no toilet or disabled facilities at this location. The area is a
public space and vehicles will park in other locations in Tumble to avoid payment.

wor Sir GACR EICH CYN6OorRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
ity Cout www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 87



3.7.1.2 Recommendation: Would have been a new order. Remove proposals for Woodlands
car park, Mynydd Mawr, Tumble, from the off-street car parking order and monitor impact.

3.8.1 Woodlands car park, Cefneithin
3.8.1.1 Objectors consider that the proposals will cause health concerns for local residents.

3.8.1.2 Recommendation: Would have been a new order. Remove proposals for Woodlands
car park, Cefneithin, from the off-street car parking order and monitor impact.

3.9.1 North Dock, Llanelli
3.9.1.1 One objector argues that order was not clear on map.

3.9.2 Recommendation: Implement the proposals as described in Appendix 1so far as they
relate to the car parks subject to this report — extending scope of existing order in the vicinity
to incorporate all spaces currently used for parking. Map defines all proposed parking areas.
Proposal will also allow for improved, dedicated provision for Blue Badge users at car park
overlooking the estuary.

4. Recommendations
That the Executive Board:

1. Determine the objections received in relation to the car parks specified in paragraph
1(i) of the Report Summary detailed below.

2. With exception to the car parks referred to in paragraphs 3.4.1, 3.7.1 and 3.8.1 of the
Report Summary resolve to implement the proposals as described in the draft order
detailed in Appendix 1 in relation to the remaining car parks specified in paragraphs
1(i) and (ii) of the said Report Summary

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? | NO - Attached:

Appendix 1 - Public notice

Appendix 2 - Plans

Appendix 3 — Equalities Impact Assessment
Appendix 4 — Objections and comments

wor Sir GACR EICH CYN6OorRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire

Tudalen 88

o <=4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
ity Cout www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report:

Signed: S. G. Pilliner Head of Highways and Transport

lan Jones Head of Leisure
Policy and | Legal Finance ICT Risk Organisational Physical
Crime & Management | Development Assets
Disorder Issues
NONE YES YES NONE YES NONE NONE
2. Legal

The Traffic Regulation Order to be introduced by the Head of Administration and Law.

3. Finance

All costs associated with the introduction of this on-street car parking order to be funded by the
Communities Department. It is reasonable to a small fee for regulated parking facilities to
administer and maintain their effective use. Fees and charges raised at these locations are re-
invested back into the Millennium Coastal Park.

5. Risk management issues

A Traffic Regulation order is being introduced to improve orderly parking of vehicles at these
locations.

wor Sir GACR EICH CYN6OorRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . ]
o <=4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
ity Cout www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 89



CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: S. G. Pilliner Head of Highways and Transport
lan Jones Head of Leisure

1. Scrutiny Committee
N/A

2. Local Member(s)
Clr Shirley Mathews
Cllr Huw Shepardson
Cllr Penny Edwards
Cllr Susan Phillips
Clir Rob Evans
Clir Emlyn Dole
Clir Dot Jones
Clir Jane Tremlett
No objections received
Cllrs John James and Amanda Fox both object to the proposals for the car parks in
their area.

3. Community / Town Council
Llanelli Rural council - No objections received

Pembrey and Burry port Town Council object to the proposals in their area stating that
it will disadvantage local people who use these places to benefit from walking and cycling,
as well as those on low income or who are elderly will be disproportionally affected. They
also consider that the areas in question are not of a sufficient standard to be considered
official car parks that should be charged for.

4. Relevant Partners
Roads Policing Unit
Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Service
NHS Wales Ambulance Service
Carmarthenshire Disability Partnership
Bus operators
- No objections received

Lee Waters AM objects to the proposals stating that the parking facilities are currently free
and should the proposals be introduced, that there would be virtually no free access to our

beaches in the Llanelli constituency. Local people use these car parks to access the outdoors
for recreation, which has physical and mental health benefits.

wor Sir GACR EICH CYN6OorRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire

Tudalen 90

o <=4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
ity Cout www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Nia Griffiths MP also objects stating that these areas are well used by local residents and
volunteer groups who regularly use these facilities, as well as picking up litter and reporting
any problems. Walking groups also use these areas which has mental health and physical
benefits.

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
- Carmarthenshire Horse Riders Association object to the proposal on the basis of increased
costs for horse riders and a lack of suitable areas to park large vehicles required to move
horses (The authority is happy to look at specific areas for horse-riders to park their vehicles,
as is being introduced outside Pembrey Country Park).
- Carmarthenshire Local Access Forum (LAF) also object to the proposal on the basis that
access to the Countryside should be free; that it goes against the authority’s aim to get more
people, more active, more often, and that it introduces a cost to using country parks.
- Keep Wales Tidy object to the proposals on the basis of parking displacement and the charge
for volunteers working in Pembrey Country Park. (Volunteers who are part of a structured
activity supported by the park can be provided with free access for their volunteer time).

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

Listed below

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Parking consolidation order
(28/8/14)

Integrated Parking Strategy
for Carmarthenshire - 2015

EBM decision meeting for
Environment — 10™ May 2019

wor Sir GACR EICH CYN6OorRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . ]
o <=4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
ity Cout www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 91


https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/4675/off-street-parking-consolidation-order-2014-english.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/4675/off-street-parking-consolidation-order-2014-english.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/4674/integratedcarparkingstrategy.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/4674/integratedcarparkingstrategy.pdf
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=238&MId=3021&Ver=4
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=238&MId=3021&Ver=4

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



PUBLIC NOTICE
THE COUNTY OF CARMARTHENSHIRE (OFF STREET PARKING PLACES)
(VARIOUS CAR PARKS, CARMARTHENSHIRE)
CONSOLIDATION (VARIATION NO 4) ORDER 2019

NOTICE is hereby given that the Carmarthenshire County Council propose to
make an Order under Sections 35(1) and (3) of Part IV of Schedule 9 of the Road
Traffic Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") as amended and by the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 2004

The effect of the Order will be to amend The County of Carmarthenshire (off
Street Parking Places) Consolidation Order 2014 (which implements a system of
parking enforcement consequent upon decriminalisation of offences relating to
the parking of vehicles and the use of parking places in designated off street
parking places in the County of Carmarthen as described in the Order an which
also empowers parking attendants to issue penalty charge notices in respect of
those offences)

The consequence of the amendment will make the parking places specified and
described in part 2 of the Schedule subject to the provisions of The County of
Carmarthenshire (Off Street Parking Places) Consolidation Order 2014 (as
amended) and will be subject to the Charges specified in Part 3 of the Schedule
to this Notice.

Full details of these proposals are contained in the draft Order together with a
map showing the parking places and a statement of the Council’s reasons for
proposing to make the Order, may be examined at the Council’s Customer
Service Centre at The Hub, Stepney Street, Llanelli and at 3 Spilman Street,
Carmarthen during normal office hours.

If you wish to object to the proposed Order you should send the grounds for
your objection in writing to The Head of Administration and Law, County Hall,
Carmarthen. SA31 1JP by the 2224 March, 2019.

DATED the 27th February, 2019

File Reference: RWJ/HTTR-1535 MARK JAMES
Direct Line: (01267) 224074 Chief Executive
email: rwjones@sirgar.gov.uk County Hall,
CARMARTHEN
Tudalen 93

Cstypist/pubnotices/driving/amgilbert



List of Schedules

1 Orders to be Revoked
2 Parking Places
3 Parking Tariffs

SCHEDULE 1

1. The County of Carmarthenshire (Off Street Parking Places) Llanelli Leisure
Centre Car Park Consolidation (Variation No3) Order 2015 needs to be
revoked in so far it relates to the attached schedule.

2. The Carmarthenshire County Council (Off-Street Parking Places)
Consolidation Order 2014 needs to be revoked in so far as it relates to the
attached schedule.

SCHEDULE 2

Parking Places —- CARMARTHEN

Avaﬂam'_of Parking Places: All hours during charging days
Charging Hours: 08:00 to 06:00 p.m
Charging Days: Saturday and Sunday only

Location Description Classesof | Positionin | Maximam Period of
Vehicles Which " Walting
Vehicles
May Wait
Parc Myrddin North Bounded to the South Side Bro | Vehicles not Wholly Rogistrar Permit Parking
Car Park Myrddin Playing Fields and exceeding 3.5 within only (Day Permits)
Carmarthen bounded on the West Side by | tonnes gross marked bays | Saturday — Sunday 8 am -
Park Myrddin Car Park. vehicles weight; andpotina | 6pm
{Allocation of 26 Parking Vehicles less than | bay indicated
Spaces). 2 metres (6 feet 8 | as being
Vehicles a specific
constructed soley | class of User
for carriage of not
more than §
passengers
exchusive of the
Parc Myrddin Bounded to the East Side Bro Vehicles not Parked Registrar Visitors only
Registrar Car Park Myrddin Playing Fields and exceeding 3.5 Within a
bounded on the South Side by tonnes gross marked bay, | Monday — Sunday 8 am —
Richmond Terrace, on the vehicles weight; Wholly 6 pm
West Side by Myrddin Vehicles less than within (Day Permits)
2 metres (6 feet 8 | marked bays
inches high; andnotina
Vehicles bay indicated
constructed soley a being
for carriage of not | reserved for
more than 8 a specific
passengers class of User
exclusive of the
- driver. -
Tudalen 94

Cstypist/pubnotices/driving/amgilbert




SCHEDULE 2 (continued)

Parking Places — LLANELLI

Availability of Parking Places: All hours All days

Charging Hours: 24 hours of each day

Charging Davs: All Days

Location Description | Classes of Vehicles | Positionin | Maximum Period of
‘Which Whaiting
Vehicles
- May Wait
Rotary Way, Pembrey Bounded on the North by Vehicles not Wholly 4 hours during charging
Countr Park Rotary Way. exceeding 3.5 tonnes | within period
(Short Stay) Bounded to the East by the gross vehicles weight; | marked bays
football field to the Southby | Vehicles less than 2 and notina
the lane leading to Sewerage | metres (6 feet 8 bay
works and West by Factory inches high; Vehicles | indicated as |
Road.. constructed soley for | being
carriage of not more | reserved for
than 8 passengers a specific
exclusive of the driver | class of User
Shoreline Car Park, Bounded on the North by Heol Vehicles not Parked 4 hours duting charging
Pembrey Vanghan exceeding 3.5 tonnes Withina | period
(Short Stay) Bounded on the South by gross vehicles weight; | marked bay,
Pembrey harbour Vehicles less than 2 Wholly
Bounded on the East by the metres (6 feet 8 within
properties known as Derwlyn | inches high; Vehicles | marked bays
Bungalows constructed soley for = andnotina
Bounded on the West by the carriage of not more bay
footpath leading to the than 8 passengers indicated a
Lifeboat plantation. exclusive of the being
driver. reserved for
a specific
class of User
Woodlands Car Park, Bounded on the North by the Vehicles not Wholly | 8 hours during the
Burry Port Class 2 Road B4311 exceeding 3.5 tonnes |  within charging period
(Long Stay) Bounded on the South by the gross vehicles weight; | marked bays
footpath/cycle way of the Vehicles lessthan2 | andnotina
Millenium Coastal path. * metres (6 feet 8 bay
Bounded on the East by the inches high; Vehicles | indicated a
-footpath leading to Tywyn constructed soley for being
Bach carriage of not more | reserved for
Bounded on the West by the than § passengers a specific
footpath leading to West Dock. exciusive of the class of User
driver.
North Dock, Llanelli Bounded on the South by Vehicles not Wholly 4 hours during the
{Short Stay) Llanelli beach, on the Eastby | exceeding 3.5 tonnes within charging period
sand dunes:on the North by gross vehicles weight; | marked bays
Lliedi Haven and on the West Vehicleslessthan2 | andnotina
by the cycle way overlooking metres (6 feet 8 bay
North Dock, inches high; Vehicles | indicated a
constructed soley for being
carriage of not more | reserved for
than 8 passengers a specific
exclusive of the class of User
driver.
Tudalen 95

Cstypist/pubnotices/driving/amgilbert




SCHEDULE 2 (continued)

Parking Places — LLANELLI

Availability of Parking Places: All hours All days

Charging Hours: 24 hours of each day
" Charging Days: All Days

Location Description Classes of Vehicles Position in Maximum Period
‘Which of Waiting
Vehicles May
Wait
Butry Port Hatbour West Bounded on the Fast by the Vehicles not Wholly within | 8 hours during
(Long Stay) harbour on the North by sand | exceeding 3.5 toormes | marked bays charging period
' dunes and Burry Port Beach: gross vehicles weight;, | and not in a bay
On the West by the row of Vehicles less than 2 indicated as
cottages and on the Southby | metres (6 feet 8 being reserved
West Dock. inches high; Vehicles | for a specific
constructed soley for | class of User
carriage of not more
than 8 passengess
exclusive of the driver
Butry Port Harbour East | Bounded on the West by the Vehicles not Parked Within a | 8 hours during
(Long Stay) harbour; on the South by the exceeding 3.5 tonnes marked bay, | charging period
Loughor Estuary: on the East | gross vehicles weight; | Wholly within
by the harbour office/Grillo Vehicles less than 2 marked bays
works and on the North by the metres (6 feet 8 end not in a bay
harbour Access road. inches high; Vehicles indicated a
constructed soley for | being reserved
carriage of not more for a specific
than 8 passengers class of User
exclusive of the
driver.
Festival Fields Bounded on the North by Vehicles not Wholly within | 8 hours during the
(Long Stay) Sandy Road exceeding 3.5 tonnes marked bays | charging period
Bounded ¢n the South by the | gross vehicles weight; | end not in a bay
cycle track leading from Sandy | Vehicles less than 2 indicated a
‘Water Park to the Leisure metres (6 feet 8 being reserved
Centre. inches high; Vehicles for a specific
Bounded on the East and West | constructed soley for class of User
by landscaped parklands carriage of not more
than 8 passengers
exclusive of the
driver.
Bynea Bound on the East by Yspitty Vehicles not Wholly within | 8 hours during the
{Long Stay) Road on the West by the exceeding 3.5 tonnes marked bays | charging period
access road to the Welsh gross vehicles weight; | and not in a bay
Water Treatment works® on the | Vehicles less than 2 indicated a
South by the Swansea to metres (6 feet 8 being reserved
Llanelli A484 Road and on the | inchies high; Vehicles | for a specific
North by the waste land. constructed soley for class of User
: carriage of not more
" than 8 passengers
exclusive of the
driver.
Sandy Water Park Bounded on the North by the Vehicles not - Wholly within | 4 hours during the-
{Short Stay) iake; on the South by cycle exceeding 3.5 tonnes marked bays | charging period
track between Sandy Water gross vehicles weight; | and not in a bay
Park and Leisure Centre and Vehicles less than 2 indicated a
on the East and West by the - metres (6 feet 8 being reserved
landscaped perkland. inches high; Vehicles | for a specific
constructed soley for class of User
carriage of not more
than 8 passengers
exclusive of the

Tudalen 96

Cstypist/pubnotices/driving/amgilbert




SCHEDULE 2 (continued)

T Parking Places - LLANELLI il
| Avallability of Parking Places: All hours All days
Charging Hours: 08:00 to 06:00 p.m
Charging Days: All Days
Location Description Classes of Vehicles | Positionin | Maximum Perjod of
Which Walting
Vehicles
May Wait
Selwyn Samuel Car Patk Bounded on the North by Vehicles not Wholly 3 hours —no charge
(14 bays) standard Selwyn Samuel Section. exceeding 3.5 tonnes | within
(3 disabled bays) Bounded on the South by by gross vehicles weight; | marked bays
Afon Lliedi. Vehicles less than 2 andnotina
Bounded on the East by metres (6 feet 8 bay
Jubilee Swimming Pool inches high; Vehicles | indicated ns
Section. | constructed soley for | being
Bounded on the South by the carriage of not more | reserved for
hall. than 8 passengers |8 specific
exclusive of the driver | class of User |
Dafen Inn Row Car Park Bounded on the North By Vehicles not Parked No maximum pericd
Dafen Inn Row. Bounded on exceeding 3.5 tonnes Within a
the South By the Class 1 Road | gross vehicles weight; | marked bay,
| A4138. Vehicles less than 2 Wholly
Bounded on the East by Dafen metres (6 feet 8 within
Steel Works access road inches high; Vehicles | marked bays
Bounded on the West by constructed soley for | andnotina
Dafen Road carriage of not more bay
than 8 passengers indicated a
exclusive of the being
driver. reserved for
a specific
- - class of User
SCHEDULE 2 (continued)
Parking Places — LLANELLI
- Availability of Parking Places: All hours All days
Charging Hours: 24 hours of each day -
Charging Days: All Days s
Location Description Classes of Vehicles | Positionin | Maximum Period of
Which Waiting
| Vehicles
May Wait _
Liyn Llech Owain Bounded on the West side by | Vehicles not Wholly 8 Hours during
the access road leading to the | exceeding 3.5 tonnes | within charging period
Visitor Centre, on the North gross vehicles weight; | marked bays
side by the Vehicles less than 2 and notina
café/shop/education block and | metres (6 feet 8 bay
on the East side by the inches high; Vehicles | indicated as
children’s play area. constructed soley for | being
carriage of not more | reserved for
than 8 passengers a specific
| exclusive of the driver | class of User |

Cstypist/pubnotices/driving/amgilbert

Tudalen 97




SCHEDULE 2 (continued)

Parking Places -PENDINE
— Availability of Parking Places: All hours All days —
—— = Charging Hours: 24 hourys of each day
Charging Days: All Days T
Location Description Classes of Vehicles | Positionin | Maximum Period of
Which Waiting
Vehicles
y | May Wait
Marsh Road, Pendine Bounded on the West by Vehicles not Wholly 8 Hours during
Kensington Court Caravan exceeding 3.5 tonnes | within charging period
Park, on the North by the gross vehicles weight; | marked bays
Principal Road A4066 Marsh | Vehicles less than 2 arinotina
Road, on the east by boundary | metres (6 feet 8 bay
with access road to Peter inches high; Vehicles | indicated as
Williams Memorial Chapel constructed soley for | being
and to the South by the access | carriage of not more | reserved for
road leading to the beach than 8 passengers a specific
exclusive of the driver | class of User -
SCHEDULE 2 (continued)
Parking Places -TUMBLE —
Avallabillty of Parking Places; All hours All days
Charging Hours: 24 hours of each day |
- Charging Days: All Days |
Location Description Classes of Vehicles Position in Maximum Period of
Which Waiting
Vehicles
May Wait
Woodlands, Tumble Bound on the North by the Vehicies not Wholly 8 hours during charging
| property Clos Yr Yan, exceeding 3.5 tonnes | within period '
Bound on the South with Heol | gross vehicles weight; | marked bays
Hirwaun Olau Vehicleslessthan2 | andnotina
Bound on the East by metres (6 foet 8 bay
Gwendraeth Road inches high; Vehicles | indicated
Bound on the West by constructed soley for | being
Liechyfedach carriage of not more | reserved for
then 8 passengers a specific
exclusive of the driver | class of User !
Woodlands, Cefneithin Bound on the North with Vehicles not Parked | 8 hours during charging
Carmarthen Road. exceeding 3.5 tonnes Withina | period
Bound on the South by the gross vehicles weight; | marked bay,
River Gwendraeth Fawr Vehicles less than 2 Wholly
Bound on the East by the metres (6 feet 8 within
| property Blaenhirwaun inches high; Vehicles | marked bays
Bound on the West by the constructed soleyfor | andnotina
Property Dolynant carriage of not more bay
than 8 passengers indicated a
exclusive of the being
driver. reserved for
aspecific |
B N class of User |

Tudalen 98

Cstypist/pubnotices/driving/amgilbert



SCHEDULE 3 - Parking Charges

Dally LLANELLY — Parking Places
Charges Availability of Parking Places = All Hours, All Days
Charging Hours = 24 hours of each day
Charging Days = All Days
North | Sandy | Rotary | Shoreline | Burry Burry | Woodlands | Festival | Bynea
Dock | Water | Way (Short Port Port Burry Port | Fields
(Short | Park | (Short Stay) Harbour | Harbour {Long (Long
Stay) | (Short | Stay) West East Stay) Stay)
Stay) (Long (Long
Stay) Stay)
Uptol £1.10 £1.10 - £1.10 £1.10 £1.10 £1.10 £1.10 £1.10
Hour
Upto2 £1.70 £1.70 £2.00 £1.70
Hours
Upto3 - - - - - - - - -
Hours
Upto4 £2.70 £2.70 £2.70 £2.70 £2.70 £2.70 £2.70 £2.70 £2.70
Hours
Upto8 - - - - £3.20 £3.20 £3.20 £3.20 £3.20
Hours
Trailer - - - - £55.00 £55.00 - -
and boat
permit
Season £40 £40 £40 £40 £40 £40 £40 £40 £40
Ticket Per Per Per Per Per Per Per Per Per
Allows | Annum | Anonm | Annum | Annum Amnum | Annum Annum Annum | Annum
for 2 cars
per
household
SCHEDULE 3- Parking Charges
Dally Charges LLANELLY — Parking Places
Availability of Parking Places =All Hours, All Days
Charging Hours =24 hours of each day
Charping Days = All Days
Selwyn Dafen
Samuel
Up to 1 Hour - -
Up to 2 Hours - -
Up to 3 Hours - -
Up to 4 Hours - -
Up to 8 Hours - -
Season Ticket - -
Allows for 2
cars per
houschold

Tudalen 99
Cstypist/pubnotices/driving/amgilbert



SCHEDULE 3- Parking Charges

Cstypist/pubnotices/driving/amgilbert

Dally Charges Parking Places - PENDINE
Availability of Parking Places: All Hours, All Days
Charging Hours = 24 hours of each day
Charging Days = All Days
PENDINE
Up ¢to 1 Hour £1.10
Up to 2 Hours £1.70
Up to 3 Hours -
Up to 4 Hours £2.70
Up to 8 Hours £3.20
Season Ticket
Allows for 2
CAr'S per
household
SCHEDULE 3- Parking Charges
Daily Charges Parking Places — LLYN LLECH OWAIN
Availability of Parking Places: All Hours, All Days
Charging Hours = 24 hours of each day
Charging Days = All Days
LLYNLLECH
OWAIN
Up to 1 Hour £1.10
Up to 3 Hours £2.20
Up to 4 Hours -
Over 3 hours £3.20
Season Ticket
Allows for 2
cars per £25
household Per annum
SCHEDULE 3- Parking Charges
Parking Places ~-MYNYDD MAWR WOODLANDS TUMBLE/CEFNIETHIN
Availability of Parking Places: All Hours, All Days
Charging Hours = 24 hours of each day
Charging Days = All Days
TUMBLE CEFNEITHIN
Up to 1 Hour £1.10 £1.10
Up to 3 Hours £2.20 £2.20
Over 3 Hours £3.20 £3.20
Up to 4 hours - -
Up to 8 hours - -
Season Ticket
Allows for 2
ears per £25 £25
household Per annum Per annum
Tudalen 100




SCHEDULE 3 - Parking Charges

| Daily Charges | CARMARTHEN - Parking Places
Avallability of Parking Places = Monday — Sunday
Charging Hours =8 am—6 pm
- Charging Days = Monday-Sunday
Pare Myrddin | Parc Myrddin
B North Registrars
__Up to 1 Hour - -
Up to 2 Hours | - i -
Up to 3 Hours - -
Up to 4 Hours - -
Up to 8 Hours - -
Season Ticket - -
Allows for 2
cars per
| household

Tudalen 101
Cstypist/pubnotices/driving/amgilbert



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol






0T usjepny

e Sir Gar

> R
Cifmaffh!jﬁ‘f:ef Rotary Way/Factory Road Car Park <

", o

e e

i
.

.ul ﬁ' -ml.; .nl-“- Graddfa 1:2500

Scale

© Hawifrsint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2018, Arclwg Ordnans 100023377

Canol y Map
Map Centre

{241740.2,200537.2] Dyddiad 05M12/2018
Date

© Crown Copyright nd database rights 2018, Ordnance Survey 100023377

Pumi



e Sle GAr
Car‘marthel:lshir_ey Fishermans Car Park, Pembrey g
&
Temek
3
"a
Pona
Path (um)
3 e |
- L
%
%
a
" omt
mm Graddia 1:2500 Canol y Map [241059.1,199618.8] Dyddiad 05/12/2018
Scale Map Centre Date

© Hawifraint y Geren a hawliau cronfa ddata 2018. Arolwg Ordnans 100023377

SOT usfepnlL

& Crown Copynght and dalabase fights 2018, Ovdnance Survey 100023377

A 3



90T uarepnl

cm“:rm_mu Shoreline Car Park Pembrey -
N

Graddfa 1:2500 Canol y Map
Scale Map Centre

©® Hawifraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2018. Arolwg Ordnans 100023377

[243803.6,200310.2) Dyddiad 09/11/2018
Date

® Crown Copyright and database rights 2018. Ordnance Survey 100023377

Puans oo 4



L0T U5I9pnl

§. J T Graddfa

e Sle Gor
c.fmanm?shdirg_ Woodlands Car Park, Burry Port

Urpy

Scals

@ Hawifraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2018. Arolwg Ordnans 100023377

— ::hé:.!-:—:;,——_:_-—_.:._._—_‘-.i-_l wd BOD 1§

Canol y Map
Map Centre

[245437.7,200371.3] Dyddiad 09/11/2018
Date

& Crown Capyright and daiabase iahts 2018, Ordnance Survey 100023377
PLan Nuwnber §



80T udrepnl

-1 635 ;
c-rmarthrr_yfhige 7 Burry Port Harbour Car Park (West)

Y

Bulldings

r x T oo Greddfa 1:1250 Cancly Map  [244419.7,200399.7] Dyddiad 14/11/2018
Scale Map Centre Date

© GetMapping pic

AN §



T 'b%—".‘-“ LA u‘—

_m?,.,,_;

VU

3,

L] =0 m .

: o 1:1,250
(@)

244883.55 200322.35




OTT usfepnl

T Fesivel flelde oar perk, Lisnell,

o Vel € & Boneiny caoni e IH0T. e Cnlves SOSTAT

ComlyMap  ROUEORAIOENG CARs MY
Map Goate Hem

g&mawmmmm.mm‘mm

PLIN



TTT usfepny

Lo Sir GAr

C=r‘n¥arthergshire‘ North Dock Car Park, Lianelli e

-
Nrny ¢ gt

0 2 4 em Graddfa 1:2500 CanolyMap  [249767,199455.1]

Dyddiad 09/11/2018
Scale Map Centre

Date

© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawllau cronfa ddata 2018, Arolwg Ordnans 100023377 ® Crown Copyright and database rights 2018. Ordnance Survey 100023377

PrAand oo q



¢lT usjepnlt

© Hawifraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2018, Arolwg Ordnans 100023377

cou S Ga.ri . ,
Carmartherjsh!re_ Llanelli leisure centre Off street car parking order
S
| Castie r
‘o 2 A ‘som Graddfa 1:1250 CanolyMap  [250196,200271.9] Dyddiad 17/09/2018
Scale Map Centre Date

© Crown Copyright and database rights 2018. Ordnance Survey 100023377

PLaN 1D



€TT uarepny

e Sir G

Carmarthenshire J' - Bynea Car Park e
7 77 ' :
7 ST
"\'..\ Tariks o

o Y s
- 1 ] o L ’h ¢ Fo
Ny T
Bk 4 g, g
i § Tal? @ﬁﬁ: "E" =]
o' 2n| 4'0 soml Graddfa 1:2500 Canol y Map [255470.2,198523.3] Dyddiad 09/11/2018
Scale Map Centre Date
@ Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2018. Arolwg Ordnans 100023377 © Crown Copyright and database rights 2018, Ordnance Survey 100023377

PLAS 1



1T usfepnl

Lo Gl G&l3
car'mmher_-sh__igf Dafen Inn Row Car Park (R

o<

y

I 1 L &
0 . 20 40 6om Graddfa 1:1250

Scale

@ Hawlitaint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2018, Arofwg Ordnans 100023377

CanclyMap  [253042.1,201136) Dyddiad 09/11/2018
Map Centre Date

® Crown Copyright and database rights 2018. Ordnance Survey 100023377

Puaw Moﬂ(b)’



o S G

“""“‘"“'?"‘g Llyn Liech Owain Car Park qum

LMl

Graddfa 1:2500 CanolyMap  [256565.9,214815.2] Dyddiad 09/11/2018
Scale Map Centre Date

© Hawifraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2018. Arotwg Ordnans 100023377 - Crown wwmmﬂﬁmmw1m

_l

c
o
D
®

S5

|

|
a1

fian Ausder




9TT usfepnlL

= Siy 34 ri

Crr'f Marsh Road Car Park, Pendine B

Y

15

EllllMlnl.‘r f

0 20 40 60m Graddfa 1:2500
Scale

© Hawifraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2018. Arolwg Ordnans 100023377

Canol y Map
Map Centre

[223557.8,208031.1] Dyddiad 09/11/2018
Date

@& Crown Copyright and database rights 2018. Ordnance Survey 100023377

Pran woe I3



JTT uarepny

o Sir Gar g™
c:fmartﬂqfhaig Woodlands Car Park, Tumble gap

Id s

£
&

;/b

LI S Ae b AYO
11T . i
0 20 40 &0m Graddfa 1:2500 CanolyMap  [253698.2,212430.2] Dyddiad 05/12/2018
Scale Map Centre Date
© Hawifraint y Goron a hawtiau cronfa ddata 2018. Aroiwg Ordnans 100023377 © Crown Copyright and database rights 2018. Ordnance Survey 100023377

PLAS



8TT UsfepnyL

e Sy GA
Carmarthenshi

n,

RS Graddla  1:2500
Scale

© Hawifraint y Goron a hawiiau cronfa ddata 2018, Arolwg Ordnans 100023377

ri
ﬂf Woodlands Car Park, Cefneithin gy

__-_l- o .—'—;-d_'L-L_;; ———— —
Canol y Map [254699.2,213207.2] Dyddiad 05/1212018
Map Centre Date

© Crown Copyright and databese rights 2018, Ordnance Survey 100023377

Prag 1S,



omer Sip Ge’ga :
Carmarthenshire J'  Sandy Water Park Car Park

Cires
gy o™

-8
X3

\\\\

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

A,
A
D
'(')—'_5 20 20 som Craddfa 1:1250 Canoly Map  [249856.1,200237.8] Dyddiad 18/09/2019
= Scale Map Centre Date
'5 PLAN 16
© Crown Copyright and database rights 2019. Ordnance Survey 100023377

Hawilfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2019. Arolwg Ordnans 100023377



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Initial Equalities Impact Assessment Template

Department:

Environment

Completed by (lead):

Richard Waters, Highways &
Transportation Manager / lan
Jones, Head of Leisure

Date of initial assessment: 1/11/2015
Revision Dates: 14/1/2017; 14/11/2018; 13/6/19; 23/8/19

This EIA follows on from previously related EIA’s on parking charges

Areato be assessed: (i.e. name of policy, function,
procedure, practice or a financial decision)

The County Council provides off street car parking facilities in towns and villages, to support the free movement of

traffic and to allow town centres and communities to function. There are 57 council car parks in the county, with a

total of 4,996 marked bays.

Is this existing or new function/policy, procedure, practice or decision?

No

What evidence has been used to inform the assessment and policy? (please list only)

Budget consultations 2014-15; 2016-19; 2018-21.

CCC Traffic Regulation Order procedures

Parking consolidation order (28/8/14)

Integrated Parking Strategy for Carmarthenshire - 2015

Public consultation on order (27th Feb, closing date 22nd Mar '19): https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/public-notices/off-street-parking-

places-consolidation-variation-no-4-order-2019/

1cT usfepny

Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013



https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/travel-roads-parking/traffic-regulation-orders/#.XQIgKmeotPY
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/4675/off-street-parking-consolidation-order-2014-english.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/4674/integratedcarparkingstrategy.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/public-notices/off-street-parking-places-consolidation-variation-no-4-order-2019/
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/public-notices/off-street-parking-places-consolidation-variation-no-4-order-2019/

pnL

Q)

1. @'escribe the aims, objectives or
puspose of the proposed function/policy,

To consider the introduction or amendment of off-street parking orders at the following locations within Carmarthenshire:

pr&etice, procedure or decision and who a) Burry Port Harbour;
is Kended to benefit. b) Woodlands, Burry Port;
c) Shoreline, Burry Port;
d) Festival Fields, Llanelli;
e) Rotary Way, Pembrey;
f) Mynydd Mawr, Woodlands, Tumble;
g) Mynydd Mawr Woodlands, Cefneithin
h) North Dock, Llanelli;
i) Sandy Water Park, Llanelli;
j) Llyn Llech Owain;
k) Pendine;
) Bynea.
The Public Sector Equality Duty requires 2. What is the level of impact on 3. Identify the risk or positive effect that could result | 4. If there is a disproportionately
the Council to have “due regard” to the each group/ protected for each of the group/protected characteristics? negative impact what mitigating

need to:-

(2) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment
and victimisation;

characteristics in terms of the three
aims of the duty?

Please indicate high (H) medium (M),

factors have you considered?

low (L), no effect (N) for each. Risks Positive effects

(2) advance equality of opportunity between

different groups; and

(3) foster good relations between different groups

(see guidance notes)
! Age Low Inability to access Formalising parking No
> facilities such as arrangements to allow
> Country Park, .
’ easier / better access.
59 footpaths, beach.
b S Potential impact on Free / discounted parking

health and well-being | still available. Promotion

Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013




Potential impact on
health and well-being

of Active Travel and thus

health and well-being

impact.
Disability Low Inability to access Formalising parking N/A
facilities such as arrangements to allow
easier / better access.
Country Park,
Free / disabled /
footpaths, beach. . . .
discounted parking still
Potential impact on available. Promotion of
health and well-being | Active Travel and thus
health and well-being
impact.
Gender reassignment Low N/A N/A N/A
Race Low N/A N/A N/A
Religion/Belief Low N/A N/A N/A
Pregnancy and maternity Low Inability to access Formalising parking

facilities such as
Country Park,

footpaths, beach.

arrangements to allow
easier / better access.
Free / discounted parking
still available. Promotion
of Active Travel and thus

health and well-being

€2T uajepny

Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013




vZT1 usfepnl

impact.
Sexual Orientation Low N/A N/A N/A
Sex Low N/A N/A N/A
Welsh language Low N/A N/A N/A
Any other area N/A N/A N/A N/A

5. Has there been any consultation/engagement with the appropriate | YES [X NO []
protected characteristics?

Public consultation on proposed off-street parking orders: 27th Feb - 22nd Mar '19:

6. What action(s) will you take to reduce any disproportionately negative impact, if any?

- Ensure free / discounted access remains for persons to access greenspaces
- Promote Active travel
- Promote parking / facility access points

7. Procurement
Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any procurement implications to the activity, proposal, service.
Please take the findings of this assessment into your procurement plan. Contact the corporate procurement unit for further advice.

N/A

8. Human resources

Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013




Following collation of evidence for this assessment, are there any Human resource implications to the activity, proposal or service?

N/A

9. Based on the information in sections 2 and 6, should this
function/policy/procedure/practice or a decision proceed to Detailed

Impact Assessment? (recommended if one or more H under section 2) YES [] NO [
Approved by: Date:
Heads of Service S G Pilliner / lan Jones 23rd Sept, 2019

Equality Impact Assessment Template November 2013

GcT usfepnyL




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



LcT usfepnyL

Appendix 4 Comments and responses

Comments

‘ Response

Burry Port harbour car park (Long stay)

The objectors state that the proposals will affect tourism in the area, as
people will not be able to afford to park, and that the coastal path should
remain free. They also state that residents pay enough council tax and that
the charges will discourage people from taking exercise, which is against
government advice. They also comment that there will be a displacement
of vehicles if parking charges are introduced as well as affecting senior
citizens with disabilities. A discounted annual pass should be available if
the charges are introduced.

Woodlands, Burry Port (Long stay)

Objectors say that this is the last car park you can use for free in the area
and that the charges will have an impact on the community. Installation
costs for car parks will outweigh income brought in from the new
machines. The proposals will reduce the wellbeing of the local community
and is a step backwards in terms of the Council’s Wellbeing of Future
Generations agenda.

Traffic Order description:

Schedule 2 — Off street car parking order

Location — Burry Port harbour West + East (Long stay) car park

Charging hours: 24 hours each day

Charging days: All days

Maximum period of waiting: 8 hours during charging period

Mitigation:

Implement the proposals as described in Appendix 1 (West car park to
change from 4 to 8 hours max waiting period; East car park — extend
parking order zone to create additional parking). There are already orders
in place (2014) to charge for both existing West and East car park. An
annual pass is available at £37.50 per annum (less than 11p per day) as part
of the proposal. Limited free parking is available along the nearby highway
network, and will also remain at Shoreline car park (3.4.1).
Recommendation: Implement the proposals as described in Appendix 1,

Traffic order description:

Schedule 2 — Off street car parking order

Location - Woodlands car park, Burry Port

Charging hours: 24 hours each day

Charging days: All days

Maximum period of waiting: 8 hours during charging period

Mitigation:

Recommendation:

Implement the proposals as described in Appendix 1 —adding order to an
existing unmanaged parking place. Limited free parking is also available on
the local highway network, and will also remain at Shoreline car park
(3.4.1) for people to access the Millennium Coastal path.




8¢T usfepnlL

Appendix 4 Comments and responses

Comments

‘ Response

Shoreline car park, Pembrey (Short stay)
The objectors state that the car park should be kept free to encourage
healthy living and for free access to the coastal path.

Festival fields, Llanelli.(Long stay)

Objectors ask that the Authority considers introducing an annual pass, and
reconsider the charge of £1.20/hour. Charges detrimental to health and
wellbeing.

Rotary Way, Pembrey country park (Short stay)

Proposals discourage use of coastal path. Charges diminished by cost of
installation, collection of fees and enforcement. Prices are out of reach for
OAP’S. No provision for horse riders. Charges are a concern for dog
walkers families and to local people on low income, and will not help
obesity issues.

Financial burden to students, social aspects as well as health. Has there

Traffic order description:

Schedule 2 — Off-street car parking order

Location — Shoreline car park, Pembrey

Charging hours: 24 hours of each day

Charging days: All days

Maximum period of waiting : 4 hours during charging period

Mitigation:

Recommendation: Remove proposal from the parking order and monitor
impact.

Traffic order description:

Schedule 2 — Off-street car parking order

Location — Festival fields car park, Llanelli

Charging hours: 24 hours of each day

Charging days: All days

Maximum period of waiting: 8 hours during charging period

Mitigation:

Recommendation:

Implement the proposals as described in Appendix 1 - adding order to an
existing unmanaged parking place. Any physical barriers will be removed or
remodelled to ensure equal access for disabled users as part of this
proposal. An annual pass is available at £37.50 per annum (less than 11p
per day) as part of the proposals. Limited free parking is also available on
the local highway network.

Traffic order description:

Schedule 2 — Off-street car parking order

Location — Rotary way, Pembrey country park

Charging hours: 24 hours of each day

Charging days: All days

Maximum period of waiting: 4 hours during charging period.

Mitigation: There are proposals to introduce a parking bay for horse boxes




6¢T usfepnlL

Appendix 4 Comments and responses

| Comments

‘ Response

been a health impact assessment.

Woodlands, Mynydd Mawr, Tumble

Objectors state that there are no toilet facilities for visitors and users and
no facilities for the disabled. The area is a public space and vehicles will
park in other locations in Tumble to avoid payment.

Woodlands, Cefneithin.
Objectors are of the opinion that the proposals will cause health concerns
for local residents

North Dock, Llanelli

opposite the entrance to the car park, a length of some 30 metres to
replace the existing double Yellow lines.

Recommendation: Implement the proposals as described in Appendix 1.
An annual pass is available at £37.50 per annum (less than 11p per day) as
part of the proposals. There are proposals in place to introduce a parking
bay for horse boxes opposite the entrance to the car park. Free parking
exists at Penybedd at the other end of Factory Road, as well as numerous
other access points along the coastal path for dog walkers and the public
alike.

Traffic order description:

Schedule 2 — Off-street car parking order

Location — Woodlands car park, Tumble

Charging hours: 24 hours of each day

Charging days: All days

Maximum period of waiting: 8 hours during charging period
Mitigation:

Recommendation: Remove proposals for Woodlands car park, Mynydd
Mawr from the off-street car parking order.

Traffic order description

Schedule 2 — Off-street car parking order

Location — Woodlands car park, Cefneithin

Charging hours: 24 hours of each day

Charging days: All days

Maximum period of waiting: 8 hours during charging period

Mitigation:

Recommendation: Remove proposals for Woodlands car park, Cefneithin
from the off-street car parking order.




O€T usfepnlL

Appendix 4 Comments and responses

| Comments

‘ Response

One objector argues that order was not clear on map (9).

Traffic order description:

Schedule 2 — Off-street car parking order

Location — North Dock, Llanelli

Charging hours: 24 hours of each day

Charging days: All days

Maximum period of waiting: 4 hours during charging period

Mitigation:

Proposal will also allow for improved, dedicated provision for Blue Badge
users at car park overlooking the estuary. Map defines all proposed parking
areas.

Recommendation:

Implement the proposals as described in Appendix 1 — extending scope of
existing order in the vicinity to incorporate all spaces currently used for
parking.




Eitem Rhif 11

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL
20 lonawr 2020

Y Pwnc: Gwasanaeth talu a theithio ar fws ysgol

Y Pwrpas: Mae'r adroddiad yn rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol am y
datblygiadau cenedlaethol sy'n effeithio ar y ddarpariaeth talu a theithio i ddisgyblion nad
ydynt yn gymwys i gael cludiant o'r cartref i'r ysgol am ddim.

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:

Os bydd y drafodaeth barhaus rhwng Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru a Llywodraeth
Cymru yn methu ag adfer yr eithriad llawn presennol ar gyfer cydymffurfio a'r Ddeddf
Gwahaniaethu ar sail Anabledd/Rheoliadau Mynediad i Gerbydau Gwasanaeth Cyhoeddus
ar wasanaethau cludiant ysgol, mae’r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn cymeradwyo’r canlynol:

1. Diwygiad i Bolisi Seddi Gwag yr Awdurdod er mwyn hepgor y tal blynyddol presennol
0 £50, gydag effaith o 1 lonawr 2020.

2. Bod yr Awdurdod yn parhau i fynd ar 6l Llywodraeth Cymru a’r Adran Drafnidiaeth i
gael newid o ran cymhwyso’r Rheoliadau Mynediad i Gerbydau Gwasanaeth
Cyhoeddus i ganiatau i weithredwyr bysiau barhau i ddefnyddio coetsis ar lwybrau
bysiau ysgol sy’n cael eu gweithredu ar sail fasnachol.

3. Bod yr Awdurdod yn cynnal adolygiad o’r Polisi Cludiant o’r Cartref i'r Ysgol.

Y Rhesymau: Rhoi cymorth i gael mynediad i'r system cludiant ysgol trwy gymhwyso polisi
seddi gwag y Cyngor.
Dim ond hyn a hyn o seddi gwag sydd yn y system cludiant ysgol.

Caniatau i weithredwyr bysiau barhau i ddefnyddio coetsis ar gyfer teithwyr sy’n talu am
docyn ar Iwybrau bysiau ysgol, ar sail fasnachol, h.y. heb gost i'r Awdurdod Lleol.

Angen ymgynghori &'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol
NAC OES
Y Pwyllgor Craffu a'r dyddiad

Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL /Y CYNGOR / Y PWYLLGOR:
Argymhellion / Sylwadau'r Pwyllgor Craffu:

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES
Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

wor Sir GAr A EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o, =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
Uty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 131



Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Yr
Amgylchedd

Enw Pennaeth y
Gwasanaeth:

S.G.Pilliner

Awdur yr Adroddiad:
S.G.Pilliner

Swydd: Pennaeth
Trafnidiaeth a Phriffyrdd

YR AELOD O’'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY’N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-

Rhif ffon: Est 5150
Cyfeiriad e-bost:

SGPilliner@sirgar.gov.uk

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Tudalen 132

Carmarthenshire

(oSN
ol'l)(y Co\)(\(’\

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani

www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



EXECUTIVE BOARD
20" JANUARY 2020

Fare Paying School Bus Services

The Council provides free home to school transport for circa 8,500 pupils each day. Pupils
who reside more than the statutory walking distance from school are eligible for transport if
they reside over two miles from nearest or the Local Education Authority (LEA) designated
primary school and three miles from the nearest or LEA designated comprehensive school.
Transport arrangements for these pupils is made using contracted vehicles or in some cases
via the public transport network.

Where pupils are eligible for transport, the public have a high regard for the services provided.
For pupils who do not qualify for free school transport, transport to and from school is a
parental responsibility.

To date, largely in urban areas, some pupils who are ineligible for free home to school
transport may have been able to access services provided through a number of channels:

1. The general public transport network.

2. Through services provided on a commercial basis by operators.

3. Through spare seats on the dedicated school transport vehicles. Seats are provided as
set out in the Council’s School Transport Spare Seats Policy.

Members will recall that late in July this year, there was a development which had and will
continue to affect pupils who have been able to access services provided commercially by
operators either in the form of dedicated “commercial” bus routes or where operators have
provided larger vehicles than the specified vehicle on a contracted route, then registered
those service to carry fare paying passengers. Such routes are registered but are “closed” to
the wider general public.

This is a relatively complex issue that the Council is unable to control and arises from
Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) compliance regulations affecting public transport services
which come into force in January 2020, known as the Public Service Vehicle Access
Regulations. DDA/PSVAR compliance for public transport services is something the industry
has prepared for and is not an issue for public transport routes.

wor Sir GAr A EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o, =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
Uty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 133



However, over the period from July to date, there has been communication between the
Wales Govt. and the Department for Transport (DfT) concerning the application of the
DDA/PSVAR to school transport services which are registered as fare paying services. The
DfT has stated that school transport vehicles which are registered to carry fare paying
passengers now also have to be DDA/PSVAR compliant by January 2020. Vehicles used on
these services are mainly coaches and are not compliant, this is linked to a requirement for all
dedicated school transport vehicles to be fitted with seat belts. Bus operators have reviewed
the investment required to operate compliant services and determined it is not viable to run
these services where fares are charged. Operators have consequently either downsized
vehicles or withdrawn a service. Some made the changes in September others are making
changes from January. Some 126 pupils were affected by the changes in September, many
have migrated to alternative public transport routes or other modes.

Since the changes in September and following further dialogue between the Wales Local
Government Association, the Wales Government and the Department for Transport. The
Department for Transport introduced an exemption to allow operators to continue to charge
fares for spare seats that were up to twenty percent of capacity of a vehicle. For example,
operators with a seventy seat vehicle could provide and charge fares for a maximum of
fourteen seats. This change was announced on the 24" November, Local Authorities have
been working through the implications of the change since. Unfortunately, the change does
not resolve the issue as a number of the services are provided by “stand alone” vehicles
where operators charge for the full capacity of the vehicle. Local Authorities via the Wales
local government Association and the Wales Government remain in dialogue with the
Department for Transport to seek further changes to the exemption.

Whilst those discussion are continuing, officers have reviewed what options are available for
the pupils affected by the change in January. The options are set out in Appendix one of this
report. Appendix A includes detail of the number of schools and pupils affected by the change
from January. The options include: 1. The use of the existing public transport network. 2.
Spare seats where bus operators wish to use the twenty percent exemption and routes where
operators have been able to provide a compliant vehicle. Many operators have determined
the latter is not a commercially viable option mainly due to cost. There is also a lack of supply
of the required compliant vehicles.

Similarly the council is unable to subsidise additional services due to the cost and supply of
vehicles and drivers. Providing transport for a relatively small number of pupils has wider
implications for over 18,500 pupils who live within the statutory walking distance who already
make their own way to school. The Wales Government is also prioritising the use of Active
Travel Measures in urban areas to promote walking and cycling.

The Authority already provides circa eighty pupils with access to seats via the Council’'s Spare
seats Policy through the payment of a fifty pounds administration charge. Where the Council
issues passes under its spare seat policy, information issued by the DfT suggests that the
current administration charge constitutes a fare for the service. The Authority will therefore
need to amend the spare seats policy to forego the charge with a small revenue consequence
of £4,000 per annum. Once the charge is removed, it will help the authority to continue
providing spare seats on mainstream school transport.

wor Sir GAr A EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o, =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
Uty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 134



Officers have communicated with all schools affected by the changes that are due to come
into effect from January .Information has been shared with the schools on the alternative
transport options that are available. Further communications are also being issued via the
press.

Recommendation.

Should the ongoing dialogue between the WLGA and the Wales Government fail to
reinstate the current full exemption for DDA/PSVAR compliance on school transport
services, Executive Board approves:

1. An amendment to the Authority’s the Spare Seats Policy to waive the current
annual £50 charge, with effect from 1st January 2020.

2. The Authority continues to pursue the Wales Government and the Department
for Transport for a change in the application of the Public Service Vehicle
Access Regulations to allow bus operators to continue using coaches on school
bus routes that are operated on a commercial basis.

3. The Authority undertakes a review of the Home to School Transport Policy.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? NO

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani

P
onsor Sir Gar 3 www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o, =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
Uty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 135



IMPLICATIONS

report :

Signed: S G Pilliner

Head of Transportation and Highways

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this

Policy, Crime
& Disorder
and
Equalities

YES

Legal

NONE

Finance

YES

ICT

NONE

Risk
Management
Issues

NONE

Staffing
Implications

NONE

Physical
Assets

NONE

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

A decision to waive the administration charge of £50 per pass will require a change to the
Council’s policy on spare seat provision.

2. Finance

A decision to waive the administration charge of £50 per pass will result in a loss of revenue
of circa £4,000 per annum.

P N
oneor Sir Gar B

Tudalen 136

Carmarthenshire

»,

Q, ===\
Ol’l)(y Co\)(\(’\

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Your counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales




CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: S.G.Pilliner Head of Transportation and Highways

1. Scrutiny Committee

N/A

2.Local Member(s)

N/A

3.Community / Town Council
N/A

4.Relevant Partners

N/A

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THERE ARE NONE

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o, =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
Uty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 137



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



APPENDIX ONE

School Routes Affected Estimated Options Total Number Estimated
Number of Number of Pupils  Number of Pupils
Pupils of with Free Travelling on Fare

Affected Pupils School Paying Commercial /
from at Transport Contracted

January School Transport

The contract bus has 57 on a 70 seater so 13 available 46

Bryngwyn L20 Llangennech —

Bryngwyn (larger vehicle seats — Spare seat applications are being considered.

on contract bus) —we (18 Currently

estimate 14 users. travelling are
affected by the

L28 Maengwynne — 4 The contract bus has 31 on a 45 seater so 14 available change in January.

Bryngwyn (larger vehicle seats, we received 2 spare seat applications. An additional 28

on contract bus) Spare seat applications are being considered. pupils are travelling
on the L24 service
which is continuing
to operate.)

L21 Sandy & Morfa — 30 X11 Sandy Road 0742 — Llanelli Bus Stn 0750 change to 835 5 30

Coedcae (freestanding 110 0810 to Heol Capel Isaf 0815 (walk 0.4 mile 10 mins)

service bus) school starts 0835. School ends 1455, use 110 from Heol

Capel Isaf 1521 to Llanelli Bus Stn 1525 & X11 1535 Bus
Stn to Sandy Road

Sandy Road is 1.8 mile walk

No Public Transport from Morfa, Morfa school is 0.8 mile

walk
Maess y 107 Drefach to Maes y 25 Public Transport Service 164 0748 Drefach — Cefneithin 1020 590 75
Gwandraeth Gwendraeth 0754/Cross Hands 0759 for 0845 start! School ends 1530,

6ET US



—
-

St John Lloyd

109 Tumble — Maes y 50
Gwendraeth

L18 Sandy — St John Lloyd 25
(larger vehicle on contract
bus)

L27 Morfa — St John Lloyd 50
(freestanding service bus)

Ysgol y Strade L26 Dafen — Stradey 35

service 128 1547Cross Hands/1552 Cefneithin to Drefach.

Drefach is 2.4 mile walk

Public Transport Service 129 0737 Tumble — 0742 Cross
Hands, school starts 0845! School ends 1530, service 128
1547Cross Hands/1552 Cefneithin to Drefach

Tumble Hall is 2.0 mile walk

The contract bus has 31 on a 70 seater so there are 485 175
plenty of available seats.

Spare seat applications are being considered.

Public Transport Service X11 Sandy Road 0839 — Llanelli
Bus Stn 0845 change to L3 0900 to Frondeg Terrace 0903
(walk 0.4 mile 8 mins) school starts 0910. School ends
1535, use 110 110 from Heol Capel Isaf 1551 to Llanelli
Bus Stn 1555 & X11 1605 Bus Stn to Sandy Road

Sandy Road is 2.2 mile walk

The operator is registering the L27 service to continue
operating with a compliant vehicle.

Public Transport Services are also available. L1 0842
Morfa — Llanelli Bus Stn 0857 & stay on for L3 to Frondeg
Terrace 0903 (walk 0.4 mile 8 mins) school starts 0910.
School ends 1535, use 110 from Heol Capel Isaf 1551 to
Llanelli Bus Stn 1555 and L1 1615 Bus Stn back to Morfa

Morfa school is 1.4 mile walk
L23 will continue to be available for pupils from 1052 740
Felinfoel/Thomas Arms/West End.

75

103



75 Currently

No obvious Public Transport, suggest walk max 1.1 mile travelling are
to Felinfoel to catch L23 affected by the
change in January.
Dyfed Steel is 2.9 mile walk An additional 28
pupils are travelling
L35 40 Public Transport Service X11 0738 Parc Trostre — Stradey on the L23 service
Pemberton/Liwynhendy — 0754 (school starts 0830) OR 111 Pemberton around which is continuing
Bryn - Stradey 0740 — Llanelli Bus Stn 0745 for x11 0750 — Stradey 0754; to operate).

return X11 from Strade 1540 (school ends 1515) Llanelli
Bus Stn 1545 stay on for Parc Trostre or change to 111 at
1555 for Pemberton

From Bryn walk down to Pemberton lights

Pemberton/Liwynhendy is 2.8 mile walk

The following commercial services will continue unchanged from January:

243 Pensarn — QE High (freestanding service bus) C11 Trevaughan — QE High (larger vehicle on contract bus) C12 Trevaughan — Bro Myrddin (larger vehicle on contract
bus)

L23 Swiss Valley — Strade (freestanding service bus) L24 Sandy Road — Bryngwyn (freestanding service bus) L27 Morfa to St John Lloyd

All of the above commercial and will be using DDA vehicles. Around 134 pupils on average are covered by these arrangements.

TvT usfepnlL



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 12

Y Bwrdd Gweithredol
20ain lonawr 2020

Penodi LIlywodraethwr ALI

Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen:

Oherwydd fod gan y Cyng. Glynog Davies diddordeb personol fel Cadeirydd y Corff
Llywodraethol yn Ysgol Gynradd Brynaman, bod y Bwrdd Gweithredol yn ystyried enwebiad y
pennaeth i lenwi swyddi gwag llywodraethwr ALI.

Y Rhesymau:
Cyflawni’r rhwymedigaethau cyfreithiol o ran llenwi llefydd gwag ar Gyrff LIywodraethol.

Angen ymgynghori &'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol: NA

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES
Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-
Y Cynghorydd Glynog Davies

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Addysg & Swyddi: Rhifau ffon:
Phlant
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: | Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 01267 246448
Aneirin R Thomas Addysg a Chynhwysiant .

Cyfeiriad e-bost:
Awdur yr Adroddiad: i
Tanja Neumayer-James Pen Swyddog Llywodraethu TNeumayer

Ysgolion James@sirgar.gov.uk

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 143



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EXECUTIVE BOARD
20" JANUARY 2020

APPOINTMENT OF LA GOVERNOR

In accordance with the LA appointment policy for LA Governors, where LA Governor
vacancies exist or are due to arise, nominations are invited from the Governing Body
Chairperson, the Headteacher and the local elected Member.

Subsequently, all nominations are considered by the Executive Board Member for Education
& Children who makes the appointments.

Clir. Glynog Davies is the local Member and is also the current Chair of Governors at
Brynaman School. Therefore, it would not be appropriate for Clir. Davies to consider this
nomination in his role as Executive Board Member.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 144



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this

report :

Signhed: Aneirin R Thomas Head of Education and Inclusion Services
Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder & Management | Implications Assets
Equalities Issues

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

CONSULTATIONS

Signed:

Aneirin R Thomas

Head of Education and Inclusion Services

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken place and the outcomes are as detailed below

n/a
2.Local Member(s)

n/a
n/a

n/a

1. Scrutiny Committee

4 Relevant Partners

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations

ClIr. Glynog Davies, local member and Chair of Governors at Brynaman School, has been
consulted and supports the head teacher’s nomination of Mr Pedrick.

3.Community / Town Council

THERE ARE NONE

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

Title of Document

File Ref No.

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani

P
onsor Sir Gar 3 www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire A ]
o =24 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 145



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



APPOINTMENT OF LA GOVERNORS

List for Consideration

20" January 2020

PRIMARY
SCHOOL

NO. OF
VACANCIES

NOMINATIONS

NAME AND ADDRESS

NOMINATED BY

DETAILS

Please note: CCC’s ‘The Appointment of LA Governors’ states that, ‘All County Councillors [when elected] may stipulate on which
school governing bodies they will sit and their decision will take preference over 'non-elected' LA governors’.

Brynaman

2

ClIr. Glynog Davies,
Gwynfryn, 47 Hall Street,
Brynaman

Ammanford SA18 1SG

Mr Alan Pedrick,

Mr Lee James,
Headteacher

‘Clir. Davies is the local county councillor for Brynaman
and the locality. He has a wealth of experience in the
world of business, television and having the education
portfolio.

Mr Pedrick is a community councillor and is in constant
contact with the community and is aware of the needs
and challenges. He has experience as a school
governor and is aware of what is expected in the role.’

Mr James is seeking CllIr. Davies and Mr Pedrick’s re-
appointments.

LyT usfepnyL




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



	Agenda
	3 LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL A GYNHALWYD AR Y 6ED IONAWR 2020
	6 CANOLFAN IECHYD A LLESIANT GYMUNEDOL CROSS HANDS
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2

	7 PROTOCOL AR GYFER Y WASG A'R CYFRYNGAU
	Adroddiad
	Atodiad A
	Atodiad B
	Atodiad C

	8 ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW Y CYNGOR
	Atodiad A
	Atodiad B

	9 DIWEDDARU RHAGLEN GYFALAF 2019-20
	Atodiad A
	Atodiad B

	10 YSTYRIED GWRTHWYNEBIADAU I ORCHYMYN CYDGYFNERTHU SIR GAERFYRDDIN (MANNAU PARCIO ODDI AR Y STRYD) (AMRYWIOL FEYSYDD PARCIO, SIR GAERFYRDDIN) (AMRYWIAD RHIF 4)
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	3a App 2 - Off Street Parking Plans 1-15.pdf
	3b App 2 - Off Street Parking Plans 16 Sandy Water Park.pdf

	Atodiad 3
	Atodiad 4

	11 GWASANAETH TALU A THEITHIO AR FWS YSGOL
	Atodiad 1

	12 PENODI LLYWODRAETHWR ALL
	Adroddiad


